
   
 

 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees 
Wednesday, December 10, 2025, 7:00 p.m. 

Location: Library Meeting Room 
 
This meeting will be broadcast live online at: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87362469620. The public may also 
listen to the meeting by calling 312-626-6799 and entering the Meeting ID number 873 6246 9620. (There is no 
participant ID or password.) 
 
Public comments may be shared in person at the meeting or emailed to trustees@warrenville.com. Please use 
the subject line to indicate the email is a public comment for the Board Meeting. Emailed comments will be read 
during the meeting if they include the commenter’s first and last name, are received at the above email address 
prior to the meeting’s start time, are no more than 500 words in length and are free of any abusive or obscene 
language. While the Board appreciates all questions and comments, they will not respond at the meeting, but 
may choose to do so at a later time. 
 

 
AGENDA 

1. Call to order 

2. Roll Call (Trustees DuRocher, Lezon, Picha, Pyszka, Schmidt, Stull, Warren) 

a. Approve Remote Attendance and Participation, if needed (ACTION) 

3. Approval of the agenda (ACTION) 

a. Trustees may request to remove any items from the consent or regular agenda 
at this time. Discussion only items may also be added to the regular agenda at 
this time. 

4. Presentations 

a. Presentation of the FY2025 Audit (Martha Trotter, Sikich LLP) 

b. Employee Anniversary Recognition 

5. Public comments 

6. Correspondence 

7. Consent Agenda (ACTION) 

a. Approve Minutes of the November 19, 2025 Truth in Taxation Public Hearing  
b. Approve Minutes of the November 19, 2025 Regular Board Meeting 
c. Receive and file Financial Report for November 2025 
d. Accept the FY2025 Financial Audit as presented by Sikich 
e. Certify 2026 Statement of Economic Interest List and Authorize Submission of 

Information to DuPage County 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
p. 3……….. 
 
 
p. 4 … 
 
 
p. 6……….. 
p. 7 ………. 
p. 14 …….. 
 
P. 20 ……... 
 

   
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87362469620
mailto:trustees@warrenville.com?subject=Public%20Comment%20for%20Board%20Meeting


   
 

f. Adopt Ordinance #2025-06 Fixing Regular Meetings for 2026 
8. Regular Agenda 

a. Approve payments for the period of November 20 – December 10, 2025 
(ACTION) 

b. Approve transfer of funds (ACTION) 

c. Approve R-232 Resolution to Transfer Monies from the Corporate Fund to the 
Special Reserve Fund (ACTION)  

9. Unfinished Business 
a. Approve updated Policy #360 Art Exhibits (ACTION) 

10. New Business 
a. Review updated Policy #111 Remote Attendance & Participation (discussion) 
b. Authorize library staff to submit the Per Capita Grant application to the Illinois 

State Library the: (ACTION) 
i. Certification of Eligibility for Grants Pursuant to 75 ILCS 10/; and 
ii. FY25 Public Library Per Capita Grant Application; and  
iii. FY24 Public Library Per Capita Grant Expenditure Report 

11. Director’s Report 

a. 2025 Year in Review 

12. Department Head Reports 

13. President’s Report 

a. Next meetings or events 

14. Treasurer’s Report 

15. Secretary’s Report 

16. Committee Reports 

17. Trustee Comments 

18. Items for information and/or discussion (No Action)  

19. Adjournment (ACTION)  

 
 
 
 

 
p. 21 ……. 
 
 
p. 22 ………. 
 
 
p. 24 ………. 
p. 25 ………. 
 
 
p. 27 ..……… 
 
p. 33 ……….. 
 
p. 35 ……….. 
 
 
 
 
 
p. 91… 
 
 
p. 94… 
 
 
p. 106 …….. 
 
p. 107… 
 
p. 108 ... 



4b. EMPLOYEE ANNIVERSARY RECOGNITION 

Last month we had a presentation for Gail’s recent anniversary. In catching up on 
anniversaries since I started, I just wanted to also point out and celebrate: 

• 2025
o Jackie Davis – 30 years
o Stephanie Cook – 10 years

• 2024
o Ly Tran – 15 years
o Tom Hill – 5 years
o Julie Kurtis – 5 years
o Paul Dobersztyn – 5 years
o Mandy Wilson – 5 years

• 2023
o Joann Hill – 5 years
o Helen Knych – 5 years

We have wonderful staff and the library is what it is because of them! 

Meeting Packet - Page 3



6. CORRESPONDENCE

Kudos to Diana and her work with Little Friends! 

Meeting Packet - Page 4



Meeting Packet - Page 5



Minutes of the Truth in Taxation Public Hearing 
Wednesday, November 19, 2025, 7:00 p.m. 

1. Call to order – Trustee Stull called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

2. Roll Call – Trustee Stull called roll call:

ATTENDING: Trustees DuRocher (arrived at 7:02 pm), Lezon, Picha (remotely), Schmidt, Stull, 
Warren 
ABSENT:  Trustee Pyszka  

ALSO ATTENDING: Library Director Jason Stuhlmann, Assistant to the Director Jackie Davis, Public 
Services Manager Paul Dobersztyn, Members Services Manager Laurie Rex, Marketing and 
Communications Manager Kathy Gaydos, Cataloging and Acquisitions Manager MaryKellie Marquez, 
HR Manager Ian Stevens, IT Manager Duncan Jones 

a. Approve Remote Attendance and Participation

MOTION:  Trustee Schmidt moved to approve remote attendance. Trustee Warren seconded. 
Roll call vote:   
Ayes – Trustees Lezon, Schmidt, Stull, Warren 
Nays – none 
Absent – Trustees DuRocher, Picha and Pyszka 
Motion carried 

Trustee Picha is now attending the meeting remotely 

3. Public comments on the Proposed Property Tax Increase – none

4. Trustee/Staff Comments on the Proposed Tax Increase – none

5. Adjournment

MOTION: Trustee Lezon moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:03 pm.  Trustee Schmidt seconded. 
Ayes – all 
Nays – none 
Absent – Trustee Pyszka 
Motion carried 

Respectfully submitted, 

Connie Schmidt, Secretary 
Board of Trustees 
Warrenville Public Library District 

Meeting Packet - Page 6



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees 
Wednesday, November 19, 2025, 7:00 p.m. 

1. Call to order – Trustee Stull called the meeting to order at 7:04 pm

2. Roll Call – Trustee Stull called roll call

ATTENDING: Trustees DuRocher, Lezon, Picha (remotely) Schmidt, Stull, Warren 

ABSENT:  Trustee Pyszka 

ALSO ATTENDING: Library Director Jason Stuhlmann, Assistant to the Director Jackie 
Davis, Public Services Manager Paul Dobersztyn, Members Services Manager Laurie Rex, 
Marketing and Communications Manager Kathy Gaydos, Cataloging and Acquisitions 
Manager MaryKellie Marquez, HR Manager Ian Stevens, IT Manager Duncan Jones 

a. Approve Remote Attendance and Participation

MOTION:  Trustee Lezon moved to approve remote attendance. Trustee Warren seconded. 
Roll call vote:   
Ayes – Trustees DuRocher, Lezon, Schmidt, Stull, Warren 
Nays – none 
Absent – Trustees Picha and Pyszka 
Motion carried 

Trustee Picha is now attending the meeting remotely 

3. Approval of the Agenda

MOTION:  Trustee DuRocher moved to approve the agenda as presented.  Trustee Warren 
seconded. 
Voice vote: 
Ayes – all 
Nays – none 
Absent – Trustee Pyszka 
Motion carried 

4. Presentations

a. Employee Recognition - Gail Smith

Meeting Packet - Page 7



Cataloging and Acquisitions Manager MaryKellie Marquez introduced 
Cataloging and Acquisitions Associate Gail Smith who has worked at the 
library for 10 years.  MaryKellie read comments from other staff members and 
presented Gail with a certificate celebrating her anniversary. 

b. Public Services Manager Paul Dobersztyn introduced new Part-time Youth
Services Associate Michelle DeGrace, and Member Services Manager Laurie
Rex introduced Ruby Meza, new part-time Member Services Associate.

Michelle and Ruby left the meeting after introductions.

5. Public comments – none

6. Correspondence – Director Stuhlmann reviewed the following:

a. Thank you from the Warrenville Food Pantry for donations during the month of
October.

b. State of Illinois Senate Resolution recognizing the vital role of library trustees in
operating the libraries across the state.

7. Consent Agenda

Trustee Schmidt read the consent agenda as follows:
b. Approve Minutes of the October 15, 2025 Regular Board Meeting
c. Receive and file Financial Report for October 2025
d. Certify Compliance with Truth in Taxation Act
e. Adopt Ordinance #2025-05 Levy Ordinance for Fiscal Year 2026-2027
f. Certify the Certificate of Authenticity for Ordinance #2025-05 Levy Ordinance for

Fiscal Year 2026-2027
MOTION: Trustee Lezon moved to approve the consent agenda as read.  Trustee DuRocher 
seconded. 
Ayes – Trustees DuRocher, Lezon, Picha, Schmidt, Stull, Warren 
Nays – none 
Absent – Trustee Pyszka 
Motion carried 

8. Regular Agenda

a. Approve payments for the period of October 16 – November 19, 2025

MOTION:  Trustee Warren moved to approve payments in the amount of $232,555.42 for the 
period of October 16, 2025 through November 19, 2025 including electronic payments and 
checks #10805 through #10867.  Checks #10855, 10856, and 10859 are voided.  Trustee 
Lezon seconded. 
Ayes – Trustees DuRocher, Lezon, Picha, Schmidt, Stull, Warren 
Nays – none 

Meeting Packet - Page 8



Absent – Trustee Pyszka 
Motion carried 

b. Approve transfer of funds

MOTION:  Trustee Warren moved to transfer $425,000 from commercial checking account to 
operating checking account.  Trustee Lezon seconded. 
Ayes – Trustees DuRocher, Lezon, Picha, Schmidt, Stull, Warren 
Nays – none 
Absent – Trustee Pyszka 
Motion carried 

c. Approve transfer from IL Funds to 5/3 Bank

MOTION:  Trustee Lezon moved to transfer $750,000 from IL Funds to the 5/3 commercial 
checking account.  Trustee DuRocher seconded. 
Ayes – Trustees DuRocher, Lezon, Picha, Schmidt, Stull, Warren 
Nays – none 
Absent – Trustee Pyszka 
Motion carried 

9. Unfinished Business

a. Approve updated Policy #210 Library Cards

Director Stuhlmann stated the limited use card was amended to allow a limited use
card to checkout 5 items and have 5 items on hold.

Trustee DuRocher stated an IGA will be needed with the High School for the
teachers.

Trustee Stull asked about the private schools.  Director Stuhlmann stated the school
will need to be within the library district boundaries.

MOTION:  Trustee Lezon moved to approve the updated Policy #210 Library Cards.  Trustee 
DuRocher seconded. 
Ayes – Trustees DuRocher, Lezon, Picha, Schmidt, Stull, Warren 
Nays – none 
Absent – Trustee Pyszka 
Motion carried 

10. New Business

a. Updated Policy #360 Art Exhibits

Director Stuhlmann discussed the few changes to the policy. The board agreed the
Teen Lounge is not a great location for artwork to be displayed. Trustee Warren asked

Meeting Packet - Page 9



if the Artist Statement will be displayed and Director Stuhlmann replied that it would 
be. 

b. Approve ILA travel reimbursements for Trustee Lezon

MOTION:  Trustee Schmidt moved to approve 2025 ILA travel reimbursement for Trustee 
Lezon in the amount of $53.47.  Trustee DuRocher seconded. 
Roll call vote: 
Ayes – Trustees DuRocher, Picha, Schmidt, Stull, Warren 
Nays – none 
Abstain - Lezon 
Absent – Trustee Pyszka 
Motion carried 

c. Approve ILA travel reimbursements for Trustee Schmidt

MOTION:  Trustee DuRocher moved to approve 2025 ILA travel reimbursements for Trustee 
Schmidt in the amount of $15.00. Trustee Lezon seconded. 

Roll call vote: 
Ayes – Trustees DuRocher, Lezon, Picha, Stull, Warren 
Nays – none 
Abstain - Schmidt 
Absent – Trustee Pyszka 
Motion carried 

d. Approve ILA travel reimbursement for Trustee Stull in the amount of $53.47.

MOTION: Trustee Schmidt moved to approve 2025 ILA travel reimbursements for Trustee 
Stull in the amount of $53.47.  Trustee Lezon seconded. 

Roll call vote: 
Ayes – Trustees DuRocher, Lezon, Picha, Schmidt, Warren 
Nays – none 
Abstain - Stull 
Absent – Trustee Pyszka 
Motion carried 

e. Approve ILA travel reimbursement for Trustee Warren in the amount of $38.47

MOTION:  Trustee Lezon moved to approve 2025 ILA travel reimbursement for Trustee 
Warren in the amount of $38.47.  Trustee Schmidt seconded. 

Roll call vote: 
Ayes – Trustees DuRocher, Lezon, Picha, Schmidt, Stull 
Nays – none 
Abstain - Warren 
Absent – Trustee Pyszka 

Meeting Packet - Page 10



Motion carried 
 
  f. Approve sending a Trustee to PLA Conference in April 2026  
 
   After discussion it was a consensus to designate Trustee Lezon to attend the 
   PLA Conference in 2026.    
 
MOTION:  Trustee DuRocher moved to approve sending Trustee Lezon to the PLA 
Conference in April 2026. Trustee Schmidt seconded. 
 

Roll call vote: 
Ayes – Trustees DuRocher, Picha, Schmidt, Stull, Warren 
Nays – none 
Abstain - Lezon 
Absent – Trustee Pyszka 
Motion carried 
 

 g. Approve closing Friday, July 3 and/or Sunday, July 5, 2026  
 
  Director Stuhlmann explained since July 4, 2026 is on a Saturday, he would like to 
  close the library for Sunday, July 5, 2026 as an unpaid holiday. 
 

MOTION:  Trustee Picha moved to close the library on July 5, 2026 as an unpaid holiday.  
Trustee Lezon seconded. 
Roll call vote: 
Ayes – Trustees DuRocher, Lezon, Picha, Schmidt, Stull, Warren 
Nays – none 
Absent – Trustee Pyszka 
Motion carried 
 
 Director Stuhlmann informed the trustees Christmas Day 2026 falls on a Friday, 
 Christmas Day 2027 on a Saturday, Christmas Eve 2028 on a Sunday and Christmas 
 Eve 2029 on a Monday.  These dates can be discussed at a later board meeting. 
 

h. Discussion ILA Conference information about agenda format and procedures 
 
 Trustee Stull brought some information and ideas back from the ILA Trustee Day.  
 a) She stated that common monthly business could be put on the consent agenda. 
 b) Adjournment of the meeting does not have to be a motion.  Director Stuhlmann 

  researched this in Roberts Rules and the President can just adjourn the  
  meeting. 

 c) If a trustee was absent for a meeting that is being approved, they can still  
  approve the minutes. 

 d) Trustee Picha stated transparency is very important where trustees are involved 
  – on how the money was spent on trustees. 

 e) Trustee DuRocher likes the idea of reorganizing the agenda. 
 

11. Director’s Report 

Meeting Packet - Page 11



a. Director Stuhlmann reported that Trustee Schmidt, Mayor Johnson and himself
met with a representative from the Dollywood Imagination Library.  They are
working on getting a group of cities in this area interested.  It does not have to
be the entire state.

b. All Staff Day is scheduled for Friday, March 6.  There will be CPR/AED and
Stop the Bleed training with the Fire District.  Trustees are invited to attend.
The staff/trustee recognition lunch is being brought back this year. No
definite plans have been made but it will take place right after the training at
approximately 2 p.m.

12. Department Head Reports
Trustee DuRocher asked if FanCon will be held here again next year or at a different
location.  She loved it this year and hopes she can be at the 2026 one. Paul
Dobersztyn stated it will be here.

13. President’s Report
President Stull reminded the board that next month’s meeting is a week early on
December 10.

14. Treasurer’s Report
Trustee DuRocher stated Illinois Funds earned $9,139.17 in interest.
The library received notification about our TIF district distributions for 2024:
TIF #3 – we will receive $6,227
TIF #4 – we will receive $64,028

15. Secretary’s Report – none
16. Committee Reports – none
17. Trustee Comments

a. Trustee Lezon:

• Learned at ILA a lot of libraries are having issues with policies and we
should make sure our policies are in great shape.

• The DuPage Children’s Museum has popups they can bring to the library.

• She talked to an architectural/engineering firm regarding grants for solar
energy.  She would like the library to look into this.

b. Trustee Picha stated the agenda under President’s Report show the TITA
hearing on February 18 – it should be regular board meeting.

c. Trustee Stull gave a brief recap of some of the ILA takeaways she had and as
always she enjoyed the day.

18. Items for information and or discussion – none
19. Adjournment
MOTION:  Trustee DuRocher moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:26 pm.  Trustee Lezon 
seconded. 

Meeting Packet - Page 12



Ayes – All 
Nays – None 
Absent – Trustee Pyszka 
Motion carried 

Respectfully submitted, 

Connie Schmidt, Secretary 
Board of Trustees 
Warrenville Public Library District 

Meeting Packet - Page 13



Meeting Packet - Page 14



Meeting Packet - Page 15



Meeting Packet - Page 16



Meeting Packet - Page 17



Meeting Packet - Page 18



Meeting Packet - Page 19



STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
)          SS 

COUNTY OF DUPAGE ) 

CERTIFICATION TO COUNTY CLERK 

BY LIBRARY BOARD SECRETARY 

(Ethics Act Certification) 

I, Connie Schmidt, Secretary of the Board of Library Trustees of the Warrenville Public Library, and acting 
pursuant to the Illinois Governmental Ethics Act, 5 ILCS 402/4A-101 et seq., hereby certify to the County 
Clerk of DuPage County, Illinois that the names and mailing addresses of persons required to file a 
Statement of Economic Interest are the following: 

TRUSTEES 

NAME MAILING ADDRESS       COUNTY OF RESIDENCE 
Barbara DuRocher 3S560 West Avenue, Warrenville, IL 60555 DuPage 
Sandy Lezon 27W554 Warrenville Road, Warrenville, IL 60555 DuPage 
Jerri Picha 30W016 Juniper Court, Warrenville, IL  60555  DuPage 
Ericka Pyszka 2S130 Roxbury Ct, Warrenville, IL 60555  DuPage 
Connie Schmidt 3S501 Landon Avenue, Warrenville, IL 60555  DuPage 
Heather J. Stull 30W018 Plum Court, Warrenville, IL 60555 DuPage 
Richard W. Warren, Jr. 27W775 Parkview Avenue, Warrenville, IL 60555 DuPage 

EMPLOYEES 

NAME MAILING ADDRESS      COUNTY OF RESIDENCE 
Jacqueline A. Davis 41W268 Burlington Road, St. Charles, IL 60175 Kane 
Paul Dobersztyn 996 W. Briarcliff Road, Bolingbrook, IL 60440 Will 
Duncan Jones 2805 Creekside Court, Aurora, IL 60502  DuPage 
MaryKellie Marquez 2822 Dorothy Drive, Aurora, IL 60504  DuPage 
Kathy Quinn-Gaydos 3612 Quince Court, Downers Grove, IL 60515 DuPage 
Laurene Rex 642 Virginia Street, Elburn, IL 60119 Kane 
Ian Stevens 821 Genesee Drive, Naperville, IL 60563  DuPage 
Jason Stuhlmann 4142 Longmeadow Road, Downers Grove, IL 60515 DuPage 

Signed ____________________________________ __________________ 
            Connie Schmidt, Secretary Date 

(SEAL) 

Meeting Packet - Page 20



ORDINANCE 2025-06 
FIXING REGULAR MEETINGS 

An Ordinance fixing the regular meetings of the Warrenville Public Library District Board of 

Trustees for the calendar year 2026.  

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE WARRENVILLE PUBLIC 

LIBRARY THAT: 

WHEREAS, the Illinois Public Library District Act, provides that the Board shall call not less 

than five (5) regular meetings each fiscal year. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED that the Board of Trustees of the Warrenville Public 

Library District, County of DuPage, State of Illinois, will hold the following meetings during the 

calendar year 2026, said meetings to be held in the library at 7:00 P.M. located at 28W751 Stafford 

Place, Warrenville, Illinois or other locations as properly noticed: 

January 21, 2026 July 15, 2026 
February 18, 2026 August 19, 2026 
March 18, 2026 September 16, 2026 
April 15, 2026  October 21, 2026 
May 20, 2026  November 18, 2026 
June 17, 2026  December 9, 2026 

I, Connie Schmidt, being the duly appointed Secretary of the Warrenville Public Library District Board 

of Trustees of the County of DuPage, State of Illinois, do hereby certify that I am the keeper of the 

books and records of the aforesaid Library District Board of Trustees and that the foregoing is a true 

and correct copy of an Ordinance duly adopted by the Board of Trustees of the said Library District, at 

a regular meeting, duly convened and held on December 10, 2025. 

_____________________________ 
Connie Schmidt, Secretary  
Warrenville Public Library District 

(SEAL) 

Meeting Packet - Page 21



8a. REGULAR AGENDA 
Approve payments for the period of November 20 – December 10, 2025 
(ACTION) 

A partial bill list (bills received as of December 5, 2025) is attached. An updated bill list 
which includes bills received through December 10 and a suggested motion will be 
provided at the Board Meeting. 

Meeting Packet - Page 22



Date Num Name Amount
12/01/2025 10859 Davis, Jackie -43.15  

12/10/2025 10868 Accounting Services, Inc. -632.00  

12/10/2025 10869 Ambius -366.09  

12/10/2025 10870 Direct Energy Business -3,404.03  

12/10/2025 10871 Educate Station LLC -250.00  

12/10/2025 10872 Finlee Associates, Inc. -225.00  

12/10/2025 10873 Illinois Library Association -30.00  

12/10/2025 10874 Konica Minolta Business Solutions -22.69  

12/10/2025 10875 LIMRICC Purchase of Health Insurance Prog -17,729.69  

12/10/2025 10876 NextEra Energy Services Midwest, LLC -223.43  

12/10/2025 10877 Service Master Commercial Cleaning -2,849.00  

12/10/2025 10878 Wilson, Amanda -64.09  

12/10/2025 10879 Libraria -1,653.55  

12/10/2025 10880 Midwest Tape -4,577.89  

12/10/2025 10881 OverDrive -5,584.58  

12/10/2025 10882 World Book, Inc. -1,349.00  

12/10/2025 10884 HP Inc. -14,052.00  

12/10/2025 10885 Bradfield, Geof -750.00  

12/10/2025 10886 LACONI -150.00  

12/10/2025 10887 Naperville Area Humane Society -25.00  

12/10/2025 10888 OverDrive -613.71  

12/10/2025 10889 Youngren's Heating & Cooling -8,054.00  

11/20/2025 Electronic Northern Illinois Gas -232.47  

11/25/2025 Electronic Paylocity -484.06  

12/01/2025 Electronic Warrenville, City of -180.69  

-63,546.12 
d

WARRENVILLE PUBLIC LIBRARY
Transaction Detail by  Account

November 20 - December 10, 2025

Meeting Packet - Page 23



8b. REGULAR AGENDA 
Approve transfer of funds (ACTION) 

Each month, a transfer to the Fifth Third Bank operating account may be necessary to 
cover this month’s bill list and any additional anticipated expenditures, such as payroll, 
that may occur before the next regular Board Meeting. 

A suggested motion and transfer sheet will be provided at the Board Meeting. 

Meeting Packet - Page 24



8c. REGULAR AGENDA 
Approve R-232 Resolution to Transfer Monies from the Corporate Fund to 
the Special Reserve Fund (ACTION) 

Suggested motion: Approve R-232 Resolution to Transfer Monies from the 
Corporate Fund to the Special Reserve Fund. 

Transferring Money to the Special Reserve Fund 
While it has not happened since I started in early 2023, what ideally occurs on an 
annual basis is that after the audit is complete, unspent money from the previous fiscal 
year is transferred from the Corporate Fund to the Special Reserve Fund using an 
approved resolution. This helps build up the Special Reserve Fund, which, per 
Ordinance 07-08-03, can be used for additional needed future spending outside of the 
regular budget for the following: 

• Building repair and maintenance
• Library materials
• Automation hardware and software
• Furniture and equipment
• Building remodeling and expansion, including land acquisition

The Last Few Years of Spending 

The reason we have not been transferring money the last few years is to accommodate 
for the deficit budgets we’ve had since FY22 when the Board and former Director 
Whitmer began making benefit improvements. 

Corporate 
Budgeted 

Deficit 

Corporate 
Actual 

Surplus/(Deficit) 

Special Reserve 
Budgeted 
Spending 

Special Reserve 
Actual 

Spending 
FY2022 ($89,483) $170,673 $86,650 $27,090 
FY2023 ($229,631) $18,887 $123,200 $64,373 
FY2024 ($227,790) ($7,817) $70,840 $35,554 
FY2025 ($136,080) $87,652 $57,000 $3,566 

Total ($682,984) $269,395 $337,670 $130,583 

Current 
FY2026 ($134,756) TBD $170,700 TBD 

Potential 
New Total  ($817,740) $134,639 $508,390 $301,283 

Meeting Packet - Page 25



As you can see, we have been spending Special Reserve monies the last few years, 
mostly on some building maintenance and to keep us up-to-date with our computers for 
staff and the public. At the start of FY26, we had $356,715 in the Special Reserve Fund. 
If we spend all of this year’s budgeted money, we will have $186,015 left in Special 
Reserves. Hopefully we will not need to spend the entire $170,700 this year, but 
regardless, after a few years of spending out of the Special Reserve Fund and not 
putting anything back into it, it would be nice if this year we could make a transfer to 
bolster it back up a bit. 

While we have anticipated Corporate deficit spending totaling $682,984 for the last four 
fiscal years, we’ve managed to underspend enough to actually have a surplus of 
$269,395 instead. If do we spend all of this year’s budgeted deficit of $134,756, we will 
still have a 5-year accumulated surplus of $134,639 come June 30, 2026. While this 
year will be tight and most likely have some deficit spending, given our habits of the last 
four years it is unlikely that we will actually spend the full deficit. 

Transfer Recommendation 

With all of the above in mind, I would still like to play it safe and transfer $125,000 to the 
Special Reserve Fund. Hopefully, this year’s spending will be still be lower than 
expected. Then, depending on what FY27’s budget looks like, we can consider next 
year continuing to make annual transfers to Special Reserves. That way, we can keep 
those reserves healthy for future building projects and maintenance. 

Meeting Packet - Page 26



9a. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Approve Updated Policy #360 Art Exhibits (ACTION) 

Suggested motion: Approve updated Policy #360 Art Exhibits as presented. 

Art Exhibit Policy Updates 

The board reviewed this updated policy in November. As stated last month, besides 
formatting and flow, there aren’t many substantial content changes to the policy. Again, 
those are: 

• I removed the Teen Lounge as a display space option.
• Updated info about the Quiet Room.
• I increased the maximum display time from 2 months up to 6 months.
• I moved some of the items from the application to be in the policy.

There are no additional updates. If there are no further suggestions, I recommend this 
policy for Board approval. 

Meeting Packet - Page 27



ART EXHIBITS POLICY 
Policy #360 – Revised & Approved 12/10/25 

Art Exhibits at the Library 
The Warrenville Public Library District provides access to the intellectual and cultural 
resources of the community, including works of art. The Library welcomes groups, 
organizations or individuals to exhibit art in the Library.  

• Exhibits are approved and scheduled by the Executive Director or designee.
• Applications are accepted at any time. Exhibit schedules are approved on a first come,

first served basis.
• Preference is given to Library District residents and organizations.
• Depending on availability of display space, an exhibit may be scheduled for a

minimum of one month and up to a maximum of six months.
• Artists are limited to one exhibit per calendar year.

Display Space Available 

Quiet Room 
• Blue wall display area measures

135 inches wide by 48 high 
• Brown wall display area measures

228 inches wide by 60 high 
• Display system has multiple hanging

rods and hooks for displaying up to 
15 pieces, depending on their size 

Artist Application 
Any artist interested in exhibiting at the Library must submit: 

1. Signed Artist Application, which includes:
a. Photos of the works to be displayed
b. Artist statement for use by the Library
c. If applicable, a price list of pieces for sale

2. Signed Waiver of Liability/Policy Agreement

Each individual artist applying to display work, whether solo or as a member of a group, must 
complete the Artist Application and sign the Waiver of Liability/Policy Agreement. 

Meeting Packet - Page 28



Approval Process 
The Library has the final decision on the approval, schedule and arrangement of all exhibits 
and displays. The Library reserves the right to reject any or all parts of an exhibit or change 
the manner of display. 

Upon receipt of the above items, the Executive Director or designee will review the 
application for approval. If necessary, applicants must be available to meet with Library staff 
to discuss suitability of the exhibit, selection of works or determine if and how artwork can be 
installed.  

The Library will then communicate its decision with the artist via phone or email. Upon 
approval, the Library and artist will agree on start/end dates for the exhibit, along with times 
for the installation and removal of the artwork. The Library typically performs the installation 
and removal, but may ask the artist to be present and to assist. 

Planning & Exhibit Information 
Artists who are approved to exhibit their work at the Library agree to the following: 

1. All artwork must have a properly secured mechanism on the back for hanging. Framed
artwork is preferred.

2. A Library staff member will photograph and sign in all artwork when installed. Library
staff will sign out all artwork when removed. Artwork must be installed and removed on
agreed upon dates.

3. The artist will provide an Artist Statement – a brief, typed biographical statement
suitable for publication.

4. The artist will provide a list of titles and medium corresponding to the artwork so that
the Library can create title cards appropriate for mounting next to each piece of art.
The title card will include the artist name, title of work and medium.

5. Artwork does not need to be for sale. If the artwork is for sale, the artist must supply a
price list that includes the artist’s name, contact information, titles of works and prices.
The Library will not display the price list but will share it with interested individuals
upon request. Prices may not be on the face of the artwork or the title card. The
Library will receive no fees or commissions in connection with any exhibit or display.
Transactions for the purchase of exhibit items will be between the artist and the
purchaser.

6. All artwork must stay on display for the entire period agreed upon for the exhibition.
7. All publicity in connection with any artwork/exhibition must be approved by the Library.
8. The Library will use images of the artwork for promotional purposes only.

Liability 
The Library assumes no responsibility for the preservation, protection or possible damage or 
theft of materials exhibited. All items placed in the Library are at the owner’s risk. There is no 
insurance coverage on any exhibit arranged with the public. The owner must carry their own 
insurance if so desired. 

Meeting Packet - Page 29



Artist Application  
for Exhibiting Art at the Warrenville Public Library District 

Thank you for your interest in exhibiting your artwork at the Warrenville Public Library District 
(Library). Make sure you have read the Library’s Art Exhibits Policy, then complete, sign and 
submit the following application, photos of artwork and Waiver of Liability/Policy Agreement to 
the Executive Director at Warrenville Public Library District, 28W751 Stafford Place, 
Warrenville, IL 60555 or director@warrenville.com. For additional information, please contact 
the Executive Director at 630/393-1171 x118.  

Artist Name: ___________________________________________________________  

Are you part of an organization or group? (circle one)  YES   /   NO 

If YES, each individual of the group applying to display art must complete an 
application and waiver/agreement. 

Group / Organization Name (if applicable): ______________________________  

Upon approval you will be asked to provide an artist statement - a brief, typed 
biographical statement about the artist and/or organization suitable for publication. 

Artist Phone: ___________________________________________________________  

Artist Email: ___________________________________________________________  

How many pieces of art would you like to exhibit? ______________________________  

Art Medium(s):  ___________________________________________________  

Please submit digital photos of the works you wish to display with this application, or 
provide below the URL of the website where photos of the art can be found: 
 ________________________________________________________________  

Upon approval you will be asked to provide a list additionally detailing the title and 
medium for each approved piece. 

-APPLICATION CONTINUED ON REVERSE- 

Meeting Packet - Page 30

mailto:director@warrenville.com


What months are you available to exhibit? ____________________________________  
  

Exhibits will be scheduled for between 1-6 months. 
 
Is any of the artwork for sale? (circle one) YES   /   NO 
 

If YES, upon approval you will be asked to submit a document listing titles, prices and 
your contact details if you would like staff to be able to provide that information. 

 
. 
Signature: _____________________________________________________________  
 
Today’s Date: __________________________________________________________  
 
 
 
 
 
FOR STAFF USE ONLY 
 
Check items as completed. 
 
Application – has the applicant: 
 Completed the application 

 If there are multiple artists, have they all completed an application? 
 Submitted photos of artwork or accessible URL 
 Signed Waiver of Liability / Policy Agreement 

 If there are multiple artists, have they all signed a copy of the Waiver of Liability 
/ Policy Agreement? 

 
The applicant is: 
 Approved 

o Start Date of Exhibit: __________________________________________  
o End Date of Exhibit: __________________________________________  

 Denied 
 
For approved applicants: 
 Artist statement submitted 
 List provided of titles and mediums for title cards 
 If applicable, price list submitted 
 Art 

 Date art is dropped off: ________________________________________  
 Art inventoried by staff person: __________________________________  
 Date art is picked up:  _________________________________________  

 
  

Meeting Packet - Page 31



Artist Waiver of Liability / Policy Agreement  
for Exhibiting Art at the Warrenville Public Library District 

Waiver of Liability 
I hereby voluntarily assume the risk of any loss, injury or damage to myself or property, which 
in anyway arises out of the use of Warrenville Public Library District facilities for exhibition of 
artwork. Further, I do hereby waive any claim against the Warrenville Public Library District 
and its agents, servants and employees, arising from said loss, injury or damage and do 
covenant not to sue the Warrenville Public Library District thereon, regardless of whether 
such loss, injury or damage is caused in whole or in part by negligence of said Library District 
or by the negligence of the agents, servants and employees of the Library District. 

Acknowledgement 

1. I HAVE READ AND FULLY UNDERSTAND THE ABOVE DISCLAIMER STATEMENT
AND WAIVE AND RELEASE ALL CLAIMS.

AND

2. I HAVE READ, UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO THE GUIDELINES SET FORTH IN
THE LIBRARY’S ART EXHIBITS POLICY.

Artist Name: ___________________________________________________________  

Signature: _____________________________________________________________  

Today’s Date: __________________________________________________________  

Meeting Packet - Page 32



10a. NEW BUSINESS  
Review updated Policy #111 Remote Attendance & Participation 
(discussion)  

Remote Attendance & Participation Policy Updates 

This policy was last updated in 2018.  There are only two additions to the policy due to 
legal changes made by the state legislature. 

• “unexpected childcare options” – This was added previously with state
legislation, though I’m not sure when.

• “performance of active military duty as a service member” – This was just added
with new legislation that goes into effect January 1.

Meeting Packet - Page 33



REMOTE ATTENDANCE & PARTICIPATION 
Policy #111 - Revised & Approved 1/21/26 

The Warrenville Public Library District Board of Trustees allows board members to 
participate from a remote location via audio or video conference for the following 
reasons:  

• personal illness or disability;
• employment purposes or the business of the public body;
• a family or other emergency;
• unexpected childcare obligations; or
• performance of active military duty as a service member

A request to participate remotely should be given to the Library Director or Board 
President a minimum of 24 hours in advance of the meeting.  

A quorum must be physically present at the meeting’s location. Immediately following 
roll call, the Trustees physically present will vote to authorize the remote attendance.  
Once remote attendance is authorized, the remote attendee may participate in the 
meeting. For the purpose of meeting minutes, the remote participant will be counted as 
present by means of video or audio conference and will have full participation and 
voting rights. 

A Trustee who is absent but does not meet one of the qualifying reasons for remote 
participation may attend remotely, but may not participate in the meeting. In this 
situation, the Trustee will not be permitted to participate in any discussions or votes. 

Costs incurred by the Trustee for remote participation will not be reimbursed by the 
Library. 

Meeting Packet - Page 34



10b. NEW BUSINESS 
Authorize library staff to submit the Per Capita Grant application to the 
Illinois State Library (ACTION)  

Suggested motion: Move to authorize library staff to submit to the Illinois State 
Library the:  

• Certification of Eligibility for Grants Pursuant to 75 ILCS 10/; and
• FY25 Public Library Per Capita Grant Application; and
• FY24 Public Library Per Capita Grant Expenditure Report

Annual Per Capita Grant 
This is our annual Per Capita Grant application, which for FY26 allowed us to receive 
$22,412.63 from the state. 

The annual application is based on libraries adhering to the Illinois Public Library Standards. 
Earlier this year the state updated these Standards from their 2020 version. As they have 
changed a little, I’m including the Standards in the meeting packet for your review. They now 
include Intermediate and Advanced Standards in addition to the Core Standards. 

In reviewing the new Standards, we meet most (we previously met all) of the Core Standards 
and many of the Intermediate and Advanced Standards. The Core Standards that we are not 
currently meeting include: 

• Capital Improvement Plan and Maintenance Checklist – This is one of my current goals
for this year to complete. 

• Long Term Financial Plan – As I stated on the application, we have our Fund Balance
Policy and Investment Policy, both of which need reviewing. I will investigate what a 
Long Term Plan looks like for us to put together when we review the policies. 

• Succession Plan – I will add this to my list of items to work on during FY26 & FY27.

Otherwise, I believe we are in good shape in meeting the rest of the Standards. 

Meeting Packet - Page 35



ALEXI GIANNOULIAS • Secretary of State & State Librarian 
Illinois State Library, Gwendolyn Brooks Building 

300 S. Second St., Springfield, IL 62701-1796 
 ilsos.gov

 Printed by authority of the State of Illinois by union employees. September 2025 – 1 – LD A 179.12

Illinois State Library 

ILLINOIS PUBLIC LIBRARY PER CAPITA AND 
EQUALIZATION AID GRANT APPLICATION 

Certification of Eligibility 

It is the policy of the State to encourage and protect the freedom of libraries and library systems to acquire 
materials without external limitation and to be protected against attempts to ban, remove, or otherwise restrict 
access to books or other materials. Pursuant to 75 ILCS 10/ Illinois Library System Act and 23 Ill. Adm. Code 
3035.110. 

As the duly authorized representative of the library, by entering my name below, I certify that the applicant library: 

Has adopted the American Library Association's Library Bill of Rights that indicates materials should not 
be proscribed or removed because of partisan or doctrinal disapproval. 

Or, in the alternative, 

Is providing a written policy or procedure, approved and in force at the applicant library(s), declaring the 
inherent authority of the library to provide an adequate collection of books and other materials sufficient 
in size and varied in kind and subject matter to satisfy the library needs of students or patrons served and 
prohibit the practice of banning specific books or resources.  

I also certify that at the request of the State Librarian, the library agrees to provide the Illinois State Library with 
any final decision for reconsideration of library materials during the term of the grant award. 

Prefix:  _______  First Name:  ______________    _________  Last Name:  _________________________________ 

Title:  __________________________________  Pronouns:  ______________  Date:  ______________________

(e.g., Mr., Ms., Mx., Dr., etc)

q

q

1Meeting Packet - Page 36

https://www.ilga.gov/Legislation/ILCS/Articles?ActID=991&ChapterID=16


Illinois Public Library Per Capita and Equalization Aid Grants 

As required by The Illinois Library System Act (23 Ill. Adm. Code 3030.200 (a)(2)(I) and (J)), to be eligible for 
funding, the applying public library must meet the definition of a library and public library, and be recognized by 
the Illinois State Library as a full member of an Illinois library system, which includes completion of the most 
recent Illinois Public Library Annual Report (IPLAR). 

The Library Board of Trustees agrees to expend the funds received for the purposes outlined in the application 
as approved by the Illinois State Library, and as stipulated by the Illinois Library Systems Act (75 ILCS 10/8 and 
10/8.1) and Illinois State Library Grant Programs (23 Ill. Adm. Code 3035.115 and 3035.135). 

The Library Board of Trustees affirms that all grant funds received because of this application shall be used to 
provide public library service to its community by supplementing the library’s regular budget and that it will  
not reduce, nor cause to have reduced, the public library’s levy in the current or next fiscal year. 

The Library Board of Trustees agrees that the Illinois State Library or its designee shall have the right to examine 
any of the records directly related to this grant. 

Legal Name of Library:  _______________________________________________________________________ 

Library’s Control Number: _____________  Branch Number: _________________ Today’s Date: ____________  

Contact information of the person completing this grant application: 

Prefix: ____________ First Name: _________________________ Last Name: ___________________________  

Title: __________________________________ Pronouns: ___________  Phone Number: _________________

Email Address:  _____________________________________________________________________________

Library’s mailing address to receive grant payments: 

Address 1: _________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address 2: _________________________________________________________________________________

City: _________________________________________ State: ___________  ZIP + 4: _____________________ 

By checking this box, I certify: 1) that I have the authority to submit this application on behalf of the Library 
Board of Trustees, and 2) that the statements herein are true, complete and accurate to the best of my 
knowledge. The Library Board of Trustees is aware that any false, fictitious or fraudulent statements or claims 
may be subject to civil, criminal or administrative penalties. 

(e.g., Mr., Ms., Mx., Dr., etc)

2Meeting Packet - Page 37

https://www.ilga.gov/commission/jcar/admincode/023/023030300B02000R.html
https://www.ilga.gov/Legislation/ILCS/Articles?ActID=991&ChapterID=0&Print=True
https://www.ilga.gov/Legislation/ILCS/Articles?ActID=991&ChapterID=0&Print=True
https://www.ilga.gov/Legislation/ILCS/Articles?ActID=991&ChapterID=0&Print=True


Service Area Population _________________________________  
 
Please use the Illinois Public Library Service Area Map to obtain the most accurate service area population.  
 
Changes in the population count or the library’s service require documentation and supporting information. 
Contact the Illinois State Library to document this change. Documentation must include one of the following:  
 

A U.S. Census certification (e.g., correction or special census) that has been filed with the Office of the •
Secretary of State Index Department prior to submission of the application. 
For population changes, annexations or disconnects that are typically not documented by the U.S. Census, •
the library must submit appropriate and substantial supporting information, including a certified population 
count. Examples include but are not limited to: legal documentation from an appropriate municipal corporate 
authority or a library district’s referenda questions and certified results. 

 
If the population has not changed, no additional documentation is necessary. 
 
 
 
Part I. Review of Illinois Public Library Standards 
 
To be eligible for a per capita grant, a public library shall show that it will either meet or show progress toward 
meeting the Illinois library standards as most recently adopted by the Illinois Library Association (75 ILCS 10/8.1). 
 
A grant applicant with performance levels below the Core Standards must raise or improve its performance levels 
in relation to the standards according to the objectives, time frames, and priorities the library shall state in the 
application, and which are consistent with the terms of the plan of service of the system of which it is a member. 
(23 ILAC 3035.115) 
 
The Library Director and the Board of Trustees shall review the entirety of each of the 12 topics described the 
Illinois Public Library Standards. To complete this application, refer to the chart within each topic and indicate 
the level at which your library meets each standard (Core, Intermediate, or Advanced).  

3Meeting Packet - Page 38

https://siuegeography.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=0896ea81f7274518bc5299b291770e7d
https://www.ila.org/publications/illinois-public-library-standards
https://www.ila.org/publications/illinois-public-library-standards


1.) Access 
 

Library meets all Core Standards 
 
If your library does not meet one or more of the Core Standards, please summarize your planned strategies to meet or 
show progress towards meeting all Core Standards during the next fiscal year. If one or more of the Core Standards is not 
applicable to your library, please explain which are not applicable and why.  
 

q

4Meeting Packet - Page 39

https://www.ila.org/publications/illinois-public-library-standards/access


2.) Advocacy and Community Engagement 

Library meets all Core Standards 

If your library does not meet one or more of the Core Standards, please summarize your planned strategies to meet or 
show progress towards meeting all Core Standards during the next fiscal year. If one or more of the Core Standards is not 
applicable to your library, please explain which are not applicable and why.  

q

5Meeting Packet - Page 40

https://www.ila.org/publications/illinois-public-library-standards/advocacy-and-community-engagement


3.) Buildings and Grounds 
 

Library meets all Core Standards 
 
If your library does not meet one or more of the Core Standards, please summarize your planned strategies to meet or 
show progress towards meeting all Core Standards during the next fiscal year. If one or more of the Core Standards is not 
applicable to your library, please explain which are not applicable and why.  
 

q

6Meeting Packet - Page 41

https://www.ila.org/publications/illinois-public-library-standards/buildings-and-grounds


4.) Collection Management 
 

Library meets all Core Standards 
 
If your library does not meet one or more of the Core Standards, please summarize your planned strategies to meet or 
show progress towards meeting all Core Standards during the next fiscal year. If one or more of the Core Standards is not 
applicable to your library, please explain which are not applicable and why.  
 

q

7Meeting Packet - Page 42

https://www.ila.org/publications/illinois-public-library-standards/collection-management


5.) Finance and Budget 

Library meets all Core Standards 

If your library does not meet one or more of the Core Standards, please summarize your planned strategies to meet or 
show progress towards meeting all Core Standards during the next fiscal year. If one or more of the Core Standards is not 
applicable to your library, please explain which are not applicable and why.  

q

8Meeting Packet - Page 43

https://www.ila.org/publications/illinois-public-library-standards/finance-and-budget


6.) Governance and Administration 

Library meets all Core Standards 

If your library does not meet one or more of the Core Standards, please summarize your planned strategies to meet or 
show progress towards meeting all Core Standards during the next fiscal year. If one or more of the Core Standards is not 
applicable to your library, please explain which are not applicable and why.  

q

9Meeting Packet - Page 44

https://www.ila.org/publications/illinois-public-library-standards/governance-and-administration


7.) Human Resources 
 

Library meets all Core Standards 
 
If your library does not meet one or more of the Core Standards, please summarize your planned strategies to meet or 
show progress towards meeting all Core Standards during the next fiscal year. If one or more of the Core Standards is not 
applicable to your library, please explain which are not applicable and why.  
 

q

10Meeting Packet - Page 45

https://www.ila.org/publications/illinois-public-library-standards/human-resources


8.) Information Services 
 

Library meets all Core Standards 
 
If your library does not meet one or more of the Core Standards, please summarize your planned strategies to meet or 
show progress towards meeting all Core Standards during the next fiscal year. If one or more of the Core Standards is not 
applicable to your library, please explain which are not applicable and why.  
 

q

11Meeting Packet - Page 46

https://www.ila.org/publications/illinois-public-library-standards/information-services


9.) Marketing and Promotion 
 

Library meets all Core Standards 
 
If your library does not meet one or more of the Core Standards, please summarize your planned strategies to meet or 
show progress towards meeting all Core Standards during the next fiscal year. If one or more of the Core Standards is not 
applicable to your library, please explain which are not applicable and why.  
 

q

12Meeting Packet - Page 47

https://www.ila.org/publications/illinois-public-library-standards/marketing-and-promotion


10.) Programming 

Library meets all Core Standards 

If your library does not meet one or more of the Core Standards, please summarize your planned strategies to meet or 
show progress towards meeting all Core Standards during the next fiscal year. If one or more of the Core Standards is not 
applicable to your library, please explain which are not applicable and why.  

q

13Meeting Packet - Page 48

https://www.ila.org/publications/illinois-public-library-standards/programming


11.) Safety and Emergency Preparedness 
 

Library meets all Core Standards 
 
If your library does not meet one or more of the Core Standards, please summarize your planned strategies to meet or 
show progress towards meeting all Core Standards during the next fiscal year. If one or more of the Core Standards is not 
applicable to your library, please explain which are not applicable and why.  
 

q

14Meeting Packet - Page 49

https://www.ila.org/publications/illinois-public-library-standards/safety-and-emergency-preparedness


12.) Technology 
 

Library meets all Core Standards 
 
If your library does not meet one or more of the Core Standards, please summarize your planned strategies to meet or 
show progress towards meeting all Core Standards during the next fiscal year. If one or more of the Core Standards is not 
applicable to your library, please explain which are not applicable and why.  
 

q

15Meeting Packet - Page 50

https://www.ila.org/publications/illinois-public-library-standards/technology


Part IIa: Planned Use of Public Library Per Capita Grant Funds [All Applicants] 
 
Describe objectives and priorities for use of grant monies to meet or improve performance levels in relation to the standards 
outlined in Illinois Public Library Standards (23 ILAC 3035.115). Use general categories in identifying planned expenditures. 
Do NOT include monetary figures or specific brand. 
 

16Meeting Packet - Page 51



Part IIb: Planned Use of Equalization Aid Grant Funds  
An Equalization Aid Grant is a supplemental award in addition to a library’s per capita allotment. This section is required 
to be completed only by libraries informed they are eligible for this award. 

Describe the additional objectives and priorities for use of Equalization Aid grant monies to meet or improve performance 
levels in relation to the standards outlined in the Illinois Public Library Standards (23 ILAC 3035.115). Use general categories 
in identifying planned expenditures. Do NOT include monetary figures or specific brands. 

17Meeting Packet - Page 52



 Illinois Public Library Per Capita Grant Expenditures Report 
  
 

Control Number: ____________________________________ City: _________________________________________ 

Library Name: ____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Exact amount of Per Capita Grant received in Fiscal Year 2024: ___________________________________________ 
 
Based on the libraryʼs Planned Use of Grant Funds from the FY2024 grant application, report use of Per Capita Grant funds 
awarded to meet or improve performance levels in relation to the standards in Serving Our Public 4.0: Standards for Illinois 
Public Libraries (23 ILAC 3035.115). Do not include monetary figures or specific brands.  
 
Only check the standard(s) under which FY2024 Per Capita Grant funds were disbursed. Briefly report how grant funds were 
used and explain how grant funds helped meet or make progress toward meeting the applicable standard. 
 

    ❏   Core Standards — Chapter 1 

             

      ❏  Governance and Administration — Chapter 2 

 

      ❏  Personnel — Chapter 3 

 

      ❏  Access — Chapter 4 

 

      ❏  Building Infrastructure and Maintenance — Chapter 5 

 

            

Illinois Public Library Per Capita and Equalization Aid Deadline – on or before January 30 

ALEXI GIANNOULIAS • Secretary of State & State Librarian 
Illinois State Library, Gwendolyn Brooks Building 

300 S. Second St., Springfield, IL 62701-1796 
 

 Printed by authority of the State of Illinois by union employees. November 2025 – 1 – LD A 274.7

ilsos.gov

Meeting Packet - Page 53



    ❏  Safety — Chapter 6 

 

    ❏  Collection Management — Chapter 7 

 

      ❏  System Member Responsibilities and Resource Sharing — Chapter 8 

 

      ❏  Public Services: Reference and Readerʼs Advisory — Chapter 9 

 

      ❏  Programming — Chapter 10 

 

 

      ❏  Youth/Young Adult Services — Chapter 11 

 

      ❏  Technology — Chapter 12  

       

      ❏  Marketing, Promotion, and Collaboration — Chapter 13

Illinois Public Library Per Capita and Equalization Aid Deadline – on or before January 30 

Meeting Packet - Page 54



����������	��
���	
�����
��
�������

������
����������

������� !"#$��%!&�$'(')!*+(�,(', -!.%%/  0

12���2���

����	�
�����3
����
����
�������

����������4�
��
���52�����������3�����

��3�����4������������3��
�33�����6����3�����

5����2�������
��
���
����
����
��
�����7��
	�����4����3��������	��2���
���
����
�����8�12������
�����
��6�
���
���


����	����
������

���2�����
���
��
��
����2��
����
�������
�3����
	���
������2���������
��
�������2����	��
�
�����
����3�������
������������3������	��2�

������
�������4���
�������
�������2���

����2
����������
2�������
��������8���	�
������2�������4��5��2������9���3���
��
�����������

�2����	�
������
��7��
�����5��2��2����
����������
����
���
�8�

:;<=><?>0 @A?B0 C=;B?DB>C<;B0 <>E<=@B>0

F0 12����	�
��������5��
�����

�����
���
���
�����
���
5����
��������


�����
��
��������2���3���

���5��2�
G��
	���������
�8�

H0 12����	�
�����������
�3���3�3�����I�
2���������5��J�K�L���8���38�M����
LNLN8��NO8�

12����	�
���������������2����	��
�5��2�
�
���3����4������
���5��J����
2����8�

12����	�
�����������P��
���
�5��J�����
3��������2����
8�

Q0 12����	�
��������
������4��5�������
���3���

�������8�

12����	�
���
�����������������3�
��

������������������
����
���
�8�

12����	�
���
����
���
�
�33������
��������4���
�����
��������	�
���
��

�������2��6��������
���8�

R0 12����	�
������4�����
���S�������	��J�
��������2
�����������TUP8�

12����	�
������4�����
�����
���
3��2����������
J�������
�������������
3
����
���V�8�8�����4�9���	��J������

��	�������
J�������4�9�2����2�
5����5W8�

12����	�
�����4��������9�������
J����

�������������3
���
���V�8�8�
2�3�	���������4����	��J�3�	������
J���J���
���3
������
J���W8�

X0 12����	�
������4�����
��6�
�����
����
5���9�����
���
��4��������
�J����
������
���2�����������4�
�8�

Meeting Packet - Page 55



�����������	��
��	�
����
��
�������

������
���������

�� ���� !"#$#%&'��()#$(*��!'�* �$# %�
+���	����
���������������
��,���-
����.��
�����	��/+�/�
���
���
�������
��0

�

�

1� 2/� !"#$#%&'�!()�#!3#�'4$*�'�$#��

��5�
��������.��
���0

6
��
����/����������7���
��.�
/
�
�����	��0�

2/���	
�/
����������
����
���/�����/���/������	��������0

8� 2/���	
���+��������
�����
��������
����
��������+�
���
���

.�������0

���.���������
��
�..������������
��
�����+�����������+
����
���
����
�/����/�����/��	�������0

9� 2/���	�
���+����������
���
��

����������/�
���
�����0

�

2/����	�
������+���������

������

��
���������0�

2/���	
���+��������

���
��

������/����
���
�����
�����
:�0�0���������

��
�.�����.�
;3)��#&'�#33;<=

>?� 2/���	
�/
�
��5�
��
���

�����
������7���/��+������
��+����
��


������
���������
���

���0

�

>>� 2/���	
�/
������
���

�.���
	�������/������������
�����
5�
�������
����7����.����/��
��������
������
��
���0

�

>@� 2/���	
���+����


����	���
��

������	
����
.��
.��������
������+���
�
��������
�����0

2/����	�
���/
�����.�������
�������
���
.���.���������
�������+���
��

��������������0�

A

Meeting Packet - Page 56



�����������	��
���	�
�����
��
����������


�����������������
���������
����������

 !!"#$"%&'()!"*&+"),-,.&/0-#1-,1%2&314$*-*.&5&6$77(#"0.&8#9-9:7:#0�

����


��
���
������������
�������
������
��������	�
���������������
�����������������������
�
��
�������
��
	�����;�����


��

<=>?@A@=BCD=AE=B=@@FDGAHCEIJEKAFEIA?CL>JBA@C??MDNALGAI=OME@NDFNJEKAN<=A>JLDFDGP@AQF>C=ANMA?M>JBGOFR=D@AFEIA@NFR=<M>I=D@SA

�������������
����������������������
����
������
������������T
�������
���
��������
���
��������T���������������������T��

����������������;�U��

����������
�����V��T��������������
���������	�
��������������T������
����T
���T�������������
������

��������������������
����
��������
����T
��
�����������
�������
���V��
���������
��;�W����T����
���


��
���
������������
�������

��������T
����	�
��������
����������
��������
��;��

XYZ[\Z]\̂ _̀]â b[Ya]ca\bZYâ Z\dZ[_a\̂

ê WT������
����
���	�
���
���

f��V�����
	��������
��gV����


���


����
�����������;�

W�
���������
���


���f����������������

�����
�����T��	�
����
��h�����T���

��
f�T����������
T�
��i�����������T��

��	�
���
���i����
�����������;�

��	�
�����
����	�
���
���
���������

��
f�T�������T
����T���f�����
���

f��V���������	�����

�����
���

����

���	�T
�������T����	�
���
���


��������;�

ĵ WT������
����
�����
���

�������

���V��f�V��T�
���������

���
��k
�������	����������
���

�������������l�;�;���T
�	������

������
���m��
����n�V
���o;�

WT������
����
�����
�����������
��

�
T�����	��������
���
���������

��������������	�
��������
�������

�����
����
����
������
��������
��;�

WT������
����
�����
����������


�����������
���������
��k
�������

�
�������
�����
f�T�����������T��

��	�
��������������
��������
��h���

������
������������������T�V

���

VT
���T����	�
���������;�

p̂ WT������
����
�����
���
����
��
���


�
��k���
�
������
�����T�V�


������������	���������T����	�
��;q

r������
�
�
����
����
���
�
��k����

�T������
����
�����
���
������

���

N<=A>JLDFDGP@AJO?FBNAFEIAFIQMBFN=AHMDA

�����
���������������
�����

��;�

WT����	�
���
���
����T��T���T����
�
��

��������
���


������T�����������

�T����
��
�����������
����������

�s����
��
���������
����
f�T������;q

Meeting Packet - Page 57



�

�����������	��
���	�
�����
��
����������


�����������������
���������
����������
�

� !"������
����
���	�
���#��$��"����

��

�����
���
��������
�����
����

����
�
��%��

!"����	�
�����
��������

�����
���
���

�����
�����
��������
�
�������
������

������
������������"������������%�

!"����	�
����
�������$��"����
����

����
�
������
�&"�����������
���

������
����
����������������������


���
����
������%�

' !"������
����
���	�
���
��(�����
���


��������������������������	�
���

����
�
�����)���*�
��������

��

��	�
�������
�
�����)���*�������
�����

�����������
������������"����

�����������$"���������%�

!"������
�����	�
���
��(�����
���



��������
���
��
�������"����

�����
����


����
����
��������
�����

��
�����


�������������
��+���	������
������%�

�

!"������
�����	�
���
��(�����
���

�����������������
�����������
���

	�
�����������
������%�

, !"������
�������
���
���	�
���
���


$
������
�������
������������-�
���


����
�����
���
������
������#�

��������������������	�
���

���
������%�

!"������
�������
���
���	�
�������

�"����
������������
����������

./0123456748.92:2;<=4=52:57>.?4@8:/A�

!"����	�
������
�����"��
������
������

���$��#����$��"�
��������������


��������������
�����%�

�

�

B

��

��

�

Meeting Packet - Page 58



�����������	��
���	�
�����
��
����������������������������
����������

���� !�"#$%&��'#(�&)*)+#,-* .*)."/#0%��.� 1"#2#3)!% ."

���4
���5��������	��
���	�
���	�����������6��6��������������
������
�����
���������6�����

������������������


����	��������
������
���

���
����
������������
���
��������7�85�����
���������������
������
�
5���
���
����
������������

������
���
�������������
�����9�������5
��

:�����
�����
�����
����������
�����
�����
�����:��������
5�������
�������
��
	��������
�����7�;���
����
����������	����������
�����

��������
��
��������������:
�����
�
�������
���
�����
�����<=>?���@�����
�����
5����������
����������6����
�
�:����
	���
���

4��
�:�������������
����9���������6����:���7�����A���:����
�
�
����
����������������������	�
����������������5
�������:
����
�4���A

�B�������
�����6��������

��������
�����������
�
5�
���
�::���������
��:���7C

DEFGHFIHJ KLIMJ NGEMIOMHNFEMJ FHPFGKMHJ

QJ RSTUVWXYZY[\]Û_TYZ̀WabUXcdbT̀U

��
����������

�������������������
��

:
�����
�
�����	���������
���

�������7�

85����	�
������
	���5���
����
�
��

�����6�������4��5��5����
�����

���
�
�����������

���
�����e�
����

��
����������
�������:���������

����6
����������
���4�	�������7�

85����	�
���
�����	�����
���
�������
�

���
�
�������6����������5
6�������
�����

���
�
�
��������
������
�6����5��
�����

����������

���
�����e�
��7�

fJ 85����	�
���5
��
�

���
���:���6�:����

��
���5
����������
�������

�������
���


�������

�:�������:
e����B���:����


�������
����
����7�

85����	�
��������
������6��4���5��



���
���:���6�:������
�7�

85����	�
���5�����
�B�
�������
�
5���
��

���������������������:�
�����A���:�

�

������
�����:������������:��5��



���
���:���6�:������
�7��

gJ 85����	�
���
����
���
�4
�@�5����5����


�������5��
����������������������
���

�B���:�������
��
���
��	
���7�

85����	�
���@�����
�
���������6�������

���
����������������9�������
���

�B���:���7�

85����	�
����������

����
����
���
��


���
��
�����
����������������9������
���

�B���:����4��5�
��


��������


���
��
��
�:�
��7�

Meeting Packet - Page 59



����������	��
���	
�����
��
����������������������������
����������
�

�� � ����	
�� 
����
	�����������
�
��� 
��

!����
�"�����

�#����
��������� ��

�

������
�������
�������$��

� ����	�
����"��!�����������
�
��


�"��
���
���
���������������������

"
��
��������� ���

������
�������


�������$�

�

%� ��
���
������������
��"��
��������

&'()*+,-.-/01),2+*3+451).43)5-624317�

8�����
�����
��"����
���������	��������

�����#��
�������
������� ���������$�

�

9� � ����	
�� 
��
�	��������
���

�������#
�����
�
��
 �
:������ 
�����


���
�����"��!���
������
���$��

� ����	�
��� 
��
��

��������

#
�����
�
��#
��
��� 
����
������

������
�������������
��������
���

	�������������#�$�

�

;� � ����	
��:�����
�
�������
���

#
�����
�
����
�#������	���������

���� �������
��	���������
���
���

��	��<��������"
������
���

!

�����$�

� ����	�
���:�����
������
��
�������
���

#
�����
�
����
�#������
���

��
�#��������
�������� ��


������
���������� ��������
��	��������


���
�����	��<���������"
������
���

!
��
�����$��

�

=� � ����	�
�� ������
����
����

���������

"���������#
���
���� ��	��������
���

��������
���#
���
����
���������


���

�������	�������������#�$�

�

�

�

�

�

Meeting Packet - Page 60



�����������	��
���	�
�����
��
����������������������������
����������
�

�� ������	�
����
��
� 
�����!���	�"�
���


��
��#�������������


�����������

	��������
������������ �$�

������	�
����
��
���
�����������
�������

����������	���������!����
���

�
��#��������
������������
��

�
��#����
�
����$�

�

%&� ������	�
�������'������ 
!������

	���������
�����������
��

��'���� ���
�������������
�������	���

(�$�$���)*�������������
�
�������������

����
������+��� ��������
���
������),�


�
�����-$�

������	�
����
��
���
������ ���'��

��'���� ���
������
���
��
���

����
��
	�����$�

������	�
������!����

�����
����
���

�
����
��


�����
����������

��'���� ���
����
��
����(�$�$���))*��

)��������
�-$�

.

.

Meeting Packet - Page 61



�����������	��
���	�
�����
��
�����������
������
�
������������������

�  !"#!$%&'( !)%*!(+,+-%./,"0,+0$1%2#  3)/!#"%4,",5363"/

��	�
���������
����
���
����
������7����


�������������
�����
����
����
������
�7
�������������
�������
���
��������8��
������������

���������8�������

����
���������
����
�����
��
����
���
���
�����
�����������	�
�����8
7��
�����
���8
��
����������8������
�����
���

�7
��
���������
����
���
����8����9����������
�����

�����
�������
��	���:�
�����	�������8���8���

��	����
����������	�
������8����8�������
���8
������
�����
��7��
����
�����

�
�
�����������
�����
�������
���
���7����
��
����
���������	�
�����
�����
���
���������8
�
���8����
����
������	���
���
��
��������

�������	�
�����
����

��
���
��������;���������
��������
����8����8��
����
�����
����������
���
�����

��
�����
��7�������
����

<=>?@>A@� BCAD� E?=DAFD@E>=D� >@G>?BD@�

H� I8����	�
���8
��
�J�
��K
����7���


����
������
�
�����������
���8
��


��������8��L����

����	�
���

MNNOPQRSQOTUNVWQXYRYZV[Q\\VO]V̂Q_̀SNVRTaV

������������8��
���������������7����

I8������
�������7��9���	�K
���
������

bcd������defKc�gh�cd�������ie�jKijk�

l� m̀nV\QXYRYZUNVXoa_nSV̀RNVRVanNQ_TRSnaV

	��������������������
����
�����

�
�
��������

L���
���:���������������
����
�������


�����;����	�
����
����������p�����gq�

����8������
�����	�������

r� I8����	�
���8
��
����
���������

������


����
������
�
��������

I8����	�
���8
����
���98��
���

��������	�������
����
�����

�
�
�������
���
�����
���������8��

�����
������
�������������
������

��7�������
���9�����������
����
����

��
���98��
�����������	�������


����
������
�
�������
��������
�����

������
���
���������
�����7�����
���

��	s�
����

Meeting Packet - Page 62



�

����������	
������

�
��������
��������������������������������������
�

 � !"����

�
����
���������#���"��
�


���	
���������
������������$��
�����

�%����
���%�������
��

�
��������


����
�����
�

�&�����������"�
�

��
���������
���%����
�������'�����

��
�����������������������%�
���

� �

(� !"����

�
���
�����
���"������)*!�

����
��

�
���������������&�������

��"�
���
����
�������+�����
�����

��
���������

!"����

�
���	
����,��������
�������

����
��

�
�����������������
������

!"����

�
���
�%��������
����&��"��"��

�
�����������#���"��
��&������
��

�
��

�����
�-	�����&��"�������������������

.� !"����

�
����
�%�������
�%������

������������"���
���������"������������

����
���������"������	��������&�������

�"����%�
��������"	�����$��
�������

!"����

�
��
��	��
���
�%��&���"��

�����������������	
����������	��%�����

�

!"����

�
���������������

����
�"����%�������������

������������������"�������	�������/��

���
���"��	�����
��%��	����������

����������������%�
���
�������"��

�������������

0� !"����

�
���
�%���������������

����
����������%�
����������
�������
�

����%��	���������������������
����������

�
��������1�������
���������������	�����

%��������
����
���2��

!"����

�
����
�	�������"��������
3�����

45676898:4;7:<<;=7>4?@?4?7AB8CD4DE7<F7

GH859=IJ?7�

�

K� ����
������
����������������
��������

������
����

�
���
���������

�������
���&�
������"������
���������

�	��	
������������%�������������

��
����������

�

L� !"����

�
��"�����
��������
���������

����
�����������������
�������

� �

Meeting Packet - Page 63



����������	
������

�
��������
��������������������������������������
�

� � !"����

�
����
#��������
�������
����
�

������"����
����

!"����

�
���
�#���������������

����������
���	
�����

�

$%&'()*+,+-./'/0&1),('12((&13)24/',+&'

������5�������
���
#�������
�#����



���������������"����
���	
�����

�

Meeting Packet - Page 64



�����������	��
���	�
�����
��
���������
�
�������������
����������

���� !�"#$%&��'#(�&)*)+#,-* .*)."/#0� * '1#2#3%.41-5

�����������	��
���	�
�������
��6���7��	��8�����7���������������9���

������������
:���6�����;�<�������
����������9
��
�9�����9���
����


�����7���9��
���
��������6���������
9�;���

������	��
��
:�����
����������	�
������6�
����
�����	�
������7���������6�������������

���
�
�
������
����
�����
���
�������
�9���
����;���
��=
����6�������
����
�����
���
���
��
���
����

������9
���
��������	��
��������

������������
��
�9���
�
���
���������������������	������>
���7�������
:�
���������;�?�6����7���������7
���
:�
�������������7����	�
���


�9������
��������	����������>
��������7����	��
�9��������:�����6����
�����������7������
����
���	�
��������������������
�99�����;�

@7�����

��>���=	��������
���	��
���	�
�������
�
9�����������6�����7��
�99�����A�������BCDEFGHGIJKLMLNOEGPBII=9
�
�������
�
��Q

�7����7������������
��������
��������
����6�����7�Q
���>�
�9������
��������9
���
����7���

������
���
����
�������7����
������
���

R�
�������
���
�9���������
����
������6����
�6
��������������
9��
������6�
����7
����
8�7�������������;�S��
�����
���9
�
������7��


���
��	�����������������7��
�����
�8������7������
�����
����6�����7�������	�
������
�
��������������7��9�����9����
�����������	��������

����7��	�
��;�

<������
���
�	������

��
������9
���
���������

�����������;���	�
�����>��7�
�	���������TU�V�VVV����9����
�����R������	�������������
�����

W�V���S��X�VY�Z����
����
��
��
���
��
����;�������
�	������

��
����
�99���
������7
����	�
������������7
��	�����
�����9���������


����
��
��
���
��
����;�<������9
��	����������
��[��
�����>��7��7����	�
��A����������
���
��W
�����6���
��Z������������������

W������
��Z;�

\]̂_̀ ầ5 bcad5 e_]dafd̀ê]d5 ^̀ ĝ_bd̀5

h5 @7����	�
���7
��
�>�������	�������7
��

�����6�������	��
�9������
�����
���


����6���	���7��	�
��;�

@7����	�
���7
���7��	���������
��

���
�����
�����
��7�������9
�;�

@7����	�
�����
���������

���
�
����

�7������
��7����������[�
���������

��6������
����:����������;�

Meeting Packet - Page 65



�����������	��
���	�
�����
��
���������
�
�������������
����������

�� � ����	�
���!�����
�
�������




�����������������"������
���

�#������������
���� ��	�
�����"��$��


���
����"���
���%��� ���

�#�����������&�'�'����"��
����

���
�����
��
�%�����
�����
��������

�����
�
�����
�������

�������(������%�����
����
#�

�	���
�����)'�

� ��	�
�����"��$��

��
����"������


����#�������
�
������ ��%��� ���

	������
������
������"
��
�
���$�� �

� ������
���'�

�

*� � ��+,-./012+34-5126789-1:;62<962

�%����
�
��������
�
�
���"����� ��
���

� ��
��
��������	�
��=
����"���

���
�
�
������
���'�

� ����	�
���	�
��������
������"��$��


������
�������
�
�
������
�������

�����
��	������

��
��'�

� ����	�
���	�
��������>������
�
�
��

����������
��������"��$�
���%
!��

��
�%%���
���������������� ���

���
�
�
������
����
������
������'�

?� � ����	�
��� 
��
����
��������


�����(��%�"���������������%�
���

���
�
�
��


������&�'�'��	
�!�




�������
������

�����
����������




�����)'�

� �

� �

Meeting Packet - Page 66



����������	��
���	
�����
��
���������
�
�������������
����������

�� � �����
���
���	�
��� 
!��
��

������
���������� ������
"���
��

���
�����������	
��������������
�
�
��

�������
���	��������#�� ����	�
���

��������������
����


������

	��$$��������

��
��#�

� ������
����
���	�
���������


�������������

���������� 
�
��

� �����������
�����������	�
���

������������
�
�
����������
���

	��������#�

�

%� � ����	
�������&��
������
��

�'���"�����������
�
�
����������#�

��
����

	����� ����	
��������&��
���

()���*(���
��)

����������
��
����

��
�+�


�����������
������
��

�'�����	��� ��
������#����

� ����	
���

��!����"
���
����
�

��
���
���
��&�	�
���& �������

����������������������'����"������

�����
�
����
���
�������
���#�

�

,� � ����	
�����!������������


��'�
����������������	�
���

���
���������
������������
""�����

��!�
����
����

������������������

��

���������#�

� ����	�
������$����
����� ���� �

���������������������
���������	�
���

�����"���
�����
��������
"�����

������"����� ��
���
��	������
��

������#��� ����	�
��� 
��
��

���
	��� ������
������
���������

�����
"#�

� ����	
�����$�����-�
������
��

���
����������
������*�#�#��


���
����������.���
�������

����&"��������!���"����+����

������"����� ��
���
��	�����#�

� �

Meeting Packet - Page 67



����������	��
���	
�����
��
���������
�
�������������
����������

�� � ����	
��
����
���
��
���
��


��������� ��	���������!"�#�###�

��$��%�&������������� �������

�����	
���� ����������
�����$
��

���� ���
���
������ ����
���
��


����%�

� ����	�
���	�
�����'��(��
���


����'���� ��
���
��
������$
)����

� ��
��������������
'
��
	������� ��

��	��
%��

� ��	�
�������*���
�����������������

�� 
�
�����
�
�
������
������$���'��

����
���
���
���$����
������)�%�

+� � ����	
����������������
�����

,
�����'���
��-���'�����
�

��
���.��	�������� ��
$�����

���/#0����� ��
���
��	���������

� ��
���'���
����
��'�����


�����
�������
�
��
��

���
�	������� ����
�����,1���2��

�3�45-%�

� ����	�
������'�����
�������
��

��
	�����������
�
��
�'��
�����������

����
�����	�
����
����� ���� 
�������

��	�
���$�����
��3������
�
�
��

��
��

�����%�

���

67� � ����	
�������*���������
��


������������'������
��%�

� ��	�
���
�������
��������
���

89:;9<=>?9=@;A8B8CDE=;F>98FB@=GHF>8H@EI=�

��� ����	
�������*���
��
�������� ���

89:;9<=>?9=@;A8B8CDE=;F>98FB@=GHF>8H@EI�

66� � ����	
����
�����������

���
�
�
����
�$�����,�%�%��


 �
)����
������
�����

���-%�

� ����	�
��������*�����
��������
�����

$�
������,�%�%��������'���
����
�$����

	��J���$
����2��
����K�����LJ2KM-%�

�

� �

Meeting Packet - Page 68



�����������	��
���	�
�����
��
���������
�
�������������
����������

��� � ����	�
��� 
��
�����!���"�

���
�
�
����
�#�

� ������!���"����
�
�
����
����
������

$%&$''()$%*+&,(-&./+&012'32%456&*$72.$'&

�����������������8�
����
������8�
����

�9������#�

� ������!���"����
�
�
����
����
������

���
�����������
�������
����:�����

����
"��;�#�#��	�<�����������="������

	����������"�������
9���
��"����

���
�
����>���?@#�

�

��

Meeting Packet - Page 69



�����������	��
���	�
�����
��
������������
�
�������������
�������
����������

�  !"#!$%&'( !)%*!(+,+-%./,"0,+0$1%2#34+",")4%5%607!"!$/+,/!#"

�����������	��
���	�
�����
������������	����

�������
�������
���������	�
�����89�
9�����
����������9�������������

����	�
����
��:;<���=��

<>?����9�������������	��
���	�
���@�����
���
��:;<���=���A>B��C9����	�
���	�
������������
��������������	�������
���9�����
�����
������?

�
�
����
������
������
�����B���	�
������
��	������
��
���������
�������
��������9������������������������
����9�����
������������?

�9����9���

������������
D������
�����
����
�����9�������
��B�C9�������������
�����	�
�����������9����
���
��������
������������?

�������9��8��9�����
�
��
������������������B���������
�����������
����	�
�����������
������8��9�������
���9
�����
�������������
�?

�����������B

C9����	�
�������
�����������
���9��
9����
��������
������������	��������
�
������
��������
��������
���
������	��������
������������

�������������	�
�������
�����
�������������9����	�
���������
��������������B�C9�������������
����	�������������
����
���
������
���


�����
�
��8��9���
���
�����

�������
�����B�C9������
����8��E��
�������8��9��9��	�
���	��������������������
�����
������
������


���
���

����������������
���
����������
������9���B���������
������9����

����
��������
�������
����
������������������
���

��
9������������
�����������9
�
����	��
������
��B�

FGHIJHKJL MNKOL PIGOKQOJPHGOL HJRHIMOJL

SL C9��	�
���9
��
��
���������������

	��
8���9
��������������������
���

���
������B�

C9��	�
���	��
8��
��������8���
��

��
���������TU<���
��B�

���
�������������8���9��	�
���	��
8��

�������

���B�

VL C9����	�
���
��������8��9���

�����
���


��������
���
8�B�C9�����
�������9��

���������W����X���������
��Y<���=���Z[\�


����9��]����������������
������
�B�

�����9������
��������9����	�
���9
��
��

WX�����������
���������������]W���

����
���B��

Meeting Packet - Page 70



����������	��
���	
�����
��
������������
�
�������������
�������
����������
�

� !"��	�
��������������
�������
����
��

�"��	������������"����	�
������




���
�
��#��"��"�����������$��������

��
�����%�

� �

& ����

"������
������������"��	�
���

�����#��
���
����������������
���

���
�
�
���������%�

����

"������
������������"����	�
���

����
�����������������"��	�
���
�

������������	�
���

���������
���

��
�����
�%�

����

"������
������������"����	�
��

����
�����������������������
��

�
����
�������"��	�
���'�%�%��

���
������
�����������
�
���������

��
�����
�(%�

) !"����	�
���"
��
�	�
��*
��������

����������
������%���

!"������������
���������������#���

�������

����	���"��	�
��������
�����


�����
��%��

!"����	�
���
��
����
������������
�����

��
������%�

+ !�������������������"���������

�����������
���
����
����������"��


��������%���

!������������
��������������	�
���



���������������"��
��������%�

!�������������������"�����

��


����������
����������

�����
��
�

	������������"����	�
�������"��


��������%�

, !"����	�
�������
����
�����	������"��

�����������	��
���	�
�������
��-������

'����-(��
����.������	����
����%�/01�

��$��23456*317�

!"������-��������
����	��


��������
�����
�����������������"��

	�
���������������
��
���	��
��������%�

�

Meeting Packet - Page 71



�����������	��
���	�
�����
��
������������
�
�������������
�������
����������
�

� !"����	�
���"
����	��
�
���������
��

����
�����"
��
���
��������	���"��

	�
��#��

!"������
���������
������
������

�����
�����
�������"����
������
���

�����$��������
���#�!"��	�
��������$��

�"��������
�������
������
�����
����#�

��	�
�������
����
��������
���������$���

	��
��
������������%���������"��

�����
�������
#�

& !"����	�
���"
��
����
����
���
���"
�����

����������	���"��	�
��������
�����
���

��
��#�

!"�����
����
���
����������$���

�����
����	���"��	�
��������
����
���

��
��#��

!"����	�
�����
���������	��������"��


���������������
����
���
��

�����������#�

'( !"����	�
���"
��
���

���������
������

�"������
���#�

!"����	�
���"
��
���

���������
������

�"������
����
���)�����
��#�

!"����

���������
����������$���$��"�

�"��	�
���
���
��������
�����
���

���
����
��������#��

'' !"��	�
���
�������
������������
��

������
����������
��������$���������#�����������������������

!"��	�
���

��������
���
��
�������

��������
�������������

�����



��������#�

�

'* !"����	�
����
���
���������
�
��


����
�����������������
�
����

�����
����
	�����������������
����
	�������


�	�����
	�������$��)���+�
������
������

���
�����+��	���,�����������
������


�������
�����
�������
���#�-����
���

�������
���
���	
���������	�
�����.���

��

������
��������
�����������#/

� �

Meeting Packet - Page 72



�����������	��
���	�
�����
��
������������
�
�������������
�������
����������
�

�� !"��	�
����
��
��
���

��������"��

��	�
���������������
���������

������������������������������������
���

��
��������"��������#�

!"��	�
���
���

���������"����	�
���

$��"���

����
%�"������#��

!"��	�
���
���

���������"����	�
���

$��"���
���
��������
����
%�"������#�

�

�& !"����	�
���	�
��������
�����
�����
���


���
$
�������"�������
�����������	��

�"��������
����	�
�������������"��

�����������
�����	�
���
����"�����������

��	�
�������
�
����#�

!"����	�
���	�
��������
�����
�����
���


������
����$��"��"��������
����	�
���

����������"�������������
�����	�
���
���

�"�������������	�
�������
�
�����'�#�#��


������$��%�"���������������
���


�������
����
�����	�
��	�������	�
���

��������(��$���)*+,-./012.13#�

!"����	�
���	�
��������
�����
�����
���

�
���
��
���
�����	�����������������
��

	�
�����
������������
�%����
����


��������
���
��������"��������
��

��	�
������������"�������������
�����	�
���


����"�������������	�
�������
�
����#,,

�4 !"������
�����
���
��
�������

����������
��������������

����������

��
�������5���
�����6�������������������(

������������������
����#�

!"����	�
���������������
�
�
����������

�����"������
���7�����	���"������

����������
�����
��8
�����#�

!"������
����
�����	���������"��

�����������	��
��������������
���

�������
�������
���
��"���"��#�

 

Meeting Packet - Page 73



����������	��
���	
�����
��
���������
�������
��������������

���� !�"#$%&��'#(�&)*)+#,-* .*)."/#0%1* #23"!%)'3"4

��
���
����������
������5����

����
�������
��6����������5����	�
����7��	����

����������
����5�����	���
���
��������6��8
9����5
6��
�

�5����95��������
����9��������
����
������
��������
���	�����6�����
��������9����

�����
�������������
��9��8�5����������������:�

�;�������<�
��������
�������8�������
�����������5
���5����	�
������
�8��
����9��6�	�
��������6
������
����6���
�����������
���������

������
��4

=>?@A?BA4 CDBE4 F@>EBGEAF?>E4 ?AH?@CEA4
I4 75����	�
���5
�������
�������
��������5��

5������5
���5����	�
������������

��
����9���6����
��������
��������

����

�����5����	�
��J����������������6�����


����������������
��9�
���
��

�����
��6����
���������6�������6�
����

��	�
�����
�������������
���������

����9�
�5�
�������
�
������
����9����


�����
��
�����������9�
����6���������

K4 75����	�
���5
��
��������	�
��L


����6�����������������
������

75����������������
����
�����6��8���

���
���9��
���
5������	���5������
����


���;�����
������

75����������������
����
�����6��8���

	��
��
���������

M4 75����	�
������6�����N�	����
���������

����
��������������

O�	����
���������
�����6��8���
��

�������������������
��9�������9�5���

���

������
����P�������������
���8��5�

���������������
�������
����
��

�������

O�	����
���������
�����6��8���	��
��

�������������
����

Q4 75����	�
���
������
������
������
�

�
�����<���
	����
���
��������6��

�
������75����	�
���
���

����������

RST�����5������
���9�	��9�������

�
�
�����
���	���������75�����
������

U�V:����������
���5�
��5�	���������

75����	�
���5
��
��
�
����
5�������5
��

��
������
��������������75���
5���������

��6��8���
���
�N��������������
��
����

�����6��9�
������������	��
5�
�;��9��

75����	�
���
����
���
��
�;���

	��
5�
�;��9��������6�����LW���
����

8��5��
���
�9����
����
����	��
�

5��
��������
�������������
������

����������
�������
��������6���
��

��

��
����

Meeting Packet - Page 74



�����������	��
��	�
����
��
���������
��������
�������������

�� � ����	�
����!��������������

	��������
������
����	�������
�����
����


�����

���
"��

� ����	�
������!���������������
��

�#�
�����	���������

$
%��� 
���
��

��
����� �
�� 

���
���"��������

	���������������������	����������


��&��������������������������
!��%���

� ����	�
���
�����	��������� ��

������������
���
���
�
����
������

� ����	�
��
�����	�������� �

������������ �
�� 

���
���"��������

	����������������������
���� ����

������������

'� � ����	�
��������"����
���
��������
��

�
"�������
������%�� ����%����	�
����%��

�����!����%��
���������
���%�

�����������

(�����	�
�����
���$����
	��
������


�����������
"��
����������)��%���


�������%�"�	��
������%
%��%�
��


����������������
	������
��������%�

����*��

� ����	�
�����������
���
������	���

" ���������

������� ��
��������
��

�
�
%�������

+� ��
������	������
��!��
�

 ��%��

����	

$��
���������������� �����"��

��!���������
����
���
���
�����

� ����	�
��� 
��
��������
�
��


���
��
���������� 
�����!�������
���

"�� �
��
���
���!
��
��������
�������

�������
�
��
���%���
�
�����

�����!��%������!������%���"��$�����




�����%����� ����,�	����
���������

� ���������
�
��
���
��
���������

��!������"��$�%�
���
���

��!������

� 
��
��%��"�� �� �����
��%�
���
����

-� .�"�������������
��!��
�� ����% �

������
�����
���,�	���
����%��� ��

��	�
���
��������"�� �
�����
��/

�
��
������
����%���0�����������

� ����	�
������������
�����
���
%���

��
������

0�������"��$������$����


�������"�� ���"���!�������������

��	��
���	�
������
�������"�� ����

��� ���
���������	�
���"��$��

� ����	�
������!������
���"��$������


���������%�����
�������
��


�����
�
�����������
�����
�
���
���

�� ����$����
�����
���� ���

��!����������

�

Meeting Packet - Page 75



�

�����������	��
���	�
�����
��
���������
��������
��������������
�

�� ������	�
����
��
���

���������
������

��������
�����

������	�
����
��
���

���������
������

��
��� �������
�
��!���"�� ���#��

$��#���
�����
�������
������

��������

�
�
#��������
�
#����	��������

�
�
#��%���
����
���������
����
��

&�	��
�"�������
������
���
��
"�������

�

�

�

�

�

Meeting Packet - Page 76



�����������	��
���	�
�����
��
����������������

���������� !��"�#�!$%$&�'(%�)%$)�*���+�$,%(����'-$.�"-��

�����/
������0�1�
0����
���0�
��
��
����2��0�0�0�
02��0
�0�3��
�1�����2�
����0
4����5��
�����
�
0�
���������
������6��
��
�����



��1���0��/
����
���0���	�
���

����05����
����2�
40
78����
���
40
78������/
�0��
��2�/
�
50/0�������
�����


�����2�4����

��

0/0��2�
������0���	�
�����
���90�0�0�
0��0�1�
0�����/
�������
������
��:0���5������/
����
��;�0������2�:40�40�������
4����

�0�0
�
4����<0
��2��0����
�����0�0��2�����
�������0��00����90
�0�3��
�1������0�
���
50���40���0����
���0
�����������0
�0
����
��

������0�2���
�����5��40���550���������	��7��
�����40��/0��
��4���54���08��8��0�
��10��
�����2�	��7�����2������
��2�
�����40��

/0
����=0
4����5��
�����
�
0�
���������
�����/
���
�50����/�	
��
����0��0��


0��2�����01�
0�
�����
�
02����
�/���0��
�
��0�2����

4�548�0
4���5��
��/0��
��
	���=40�0�

��1���0��/
��	0��0����/0������0�
�
�0��0�
��/0����������1��0��
��
�1
��0�������0�1�
0��������

����5�
��
�50�����0�1�
0�/��0���>

���
�������2������/
������0�1�
0��/
����
���0��0�0��
�������
�
���0�1�
0�
50�
�0�2�:4�
42�������/0���	�
��0�2�/
��/0
��	�
�
4��5������

��
�
��:��7��0�1�
0������/
��
������
���0��

����
���������40���0������	�
�����

0����70�/00���5�
������������/��
���/
70����

0���

��	�
��0��/
������������1��0���40���0�1�
0�2���
4�
�����
��2��
�������
����

�����2������
0��0���
�0��0�0:
���

?@ABCADC> EFDG> HB@GDIGCHA@G> ACJABEGC>

K> L���	
��
������/
������0�1�
0��
�0�


1
��
	�0�:40���40���	�
��������0���

=40�0���
���0M�
��
��
����2��0�0�0�
02�

�0
�0�3��
�1�����2�
����0
4����5��


�����
�
0�N��
�����5�:��4��0����
��

�01�
0�O�0��40���4���54�	��0��

��
��

������������50���M���0��������

����40���	�
������1��0��
�������
��

�����/
������0�1�
0����0���5��N0�5�2�

���
��2��
�������2���5��
��/0��
��
	2�

/
70����

0O2�
��
�0;�
�0���/	0��

�����
��0����
���
�0�
1
��
	�0����
������

�
����������40�0�
�0
���

P> ��
������1��0�


��
�02���/0��2�
���


����0�����0�1�
0��

Q> =40���	�
���4
������
�0���4
��5���0�

�40����1��������������/
�����

�0�1�
0�2���
4�
��
�6��
��
���������
��


���90�0�0�
0�R�90
�0�3��L�1������

����
���

���
�������
���0�1�
0��
�0����0�0�2�

��
4�
�����
��2��
�������2���5��
��

/0��
��
	2����/
70����

02��40�

��	�
���4
������
�0��
��S���
�0
��

���
0���0��5�����5��40�����0��

Meeting Packet - Page 77



�����������	��
��	�
����
��
���������������

�� ��
����
��


������
�������
���

��
�����������������������


� ��������!��"�� 
��������������

�

�����#������
�����
��������������

�
�������$��������

%�����	�
������������
��
�������������&

�����
������� 
����������
��

������
�����
�����!�	����������	�
���


�����'()��

%�����	�
��������������� 
�����

�����
���	��
�
����������������������

����������������	�
������������

*� ��
���
����
 ���
��!����
�������

��	�
��+������������
���������

������
���
�
��
	������
��!����
�����

$�������������������� ���
���������

��	�
��������������
��������
	��������

���������������������� ���
��
���

����������
���
�������

����������

 
����
��#��

%�����	�
��������������
���!���

���
�
��,�����
��
���������� 
�����

�����
����������
�������+������������


����������
����������
���
���	-�
��


��
�����
��
��	�����������

��
�������#��

�

.� ��
���
���
!
��������

��
���

��
��!����
���
����
��������
������

!��
�������

���������
���������

������

%�����	�
������������������
���������

��

��
�����
��!����
���
�������

������������� 
�����
	����������

�����
���
��(��� ����!����������	��
�

!������������	�
�����

���

%�����	�
��� 
�����	������	
��
�

������
��������
�
�������
��
���
����

	�����������������
���	����
�
��

!��"���������
�
��!��"����������

/� ��
�����
����,������!����
��
�����

��������
������� 
�����������!������

����
�  ������
�������������������

�����
�������
����

%�����	�
��������������������������

������
�������0�
���������"��!������


����������������������������

����� 
����������
������
�����������

%�����	�
���� ��������
���!����

�0����������������
������
���
��������

�������������
�  ����������������

���������������
���!������ ����
����


���� ������������0������
����

�� ���������#��

Meeting Packet - Page 78



�����������	��
��	�
����
��
���������������

�� ������	�
�����������������
���

	
���������������
���
���������
�����




������� �!�������
�������!�
 ��

������
�����"��

����������� �
��
����������!�����

��	�
����������������������������
����

�����
�������
� �
 ��������
������

�
������������

����������� �
��
����������!�����

��	�
�������������
���#������
��

�
� �
 ��������
�������
�����������

���
����

�������������� ������
������

�������������
��$���������� �
��

�%���������

Meeting Packet - Page 79



�����������	��
���	�
�����
��
�������
�������������������������������

�  !"#!$%&'( !)%*!(+,+-%./,"0,+0$1%2,+34/!"5%6%&+#7#/!#"

�
��������
���������������
��
�
����

�����������8����

����
�������
��
	�����������	��
���	�
�����������������������
����8
���9�������

��	��
���	�
��������������8�������������
����
���
�
�
�����
�������

��������������������
������������
�����������:��8����8����


������������;8�����	�
����������<��
�9
��������������
���������
����

�=��=�

�������

��������8�������������
����
:
�����������8����

���9�
���������
���
���
����
������	���
�������
���
�����
��
�����	�
������������	�
������8
����9��������
��������
�������������

��

��
���:������

����������8�:

���9
��������

���
���������������9������������8����
������������

>?@AB@CB� DECFG HA?FCIFBH@?FG @BJ@ADFBG
KG L8����	�
��������
�9
����������������

�����
��
��������������
�����8�������



��9����������������
����
�������

�����
����
������9�
�������8��


����������

L8����	�
���8
��
��
��������������

�8
�����������:8����
���8�:��8��

��	�
���:�����
������������9�
����

�����
���
���
����
�������

L8����	�
���
������
�����
��

�
����������
���

MG L8��	�
��������
����
�����
���
���

�
����
��:��8���	��
����
������
���

�
�������������
��9�����9�������	��

�8��������
����	�
�������������8��

�����������
�����	�
�����8�����������

��	�
���N���
�
������
����8��

N����

����	�
���N���
�
�����O������

�PQNR��S
�����S�����;�����T
����
��

��	�
���;�������	�
���U
����������

����8V��

L8����	�
������9�������
������

�������������������8������
�������
����


��W���	�
��������
�������
��9��

���8�����������������	�
������9�
���

���
����������
������
����
�:
����

L8����	�
���8
��������������

����

�������������������
��������


�����
�8�
���������

XG L8����	�
���
���

��������������

�
��������
��������������

Meeting Packet - Page 80



����������	��
���	
�����
��
�������
������������������������������
�

� !"����	�
��
������
���
�����

��
����#
	���������"
��������������"��

��	�
��$��	�
����

!"����	�
�����������������
������������



�����
���������
��������
���
��������

��
��������

!"����	�
���
������
�	�
���������

����������������"����	�
��$��

���������
��������
���
������

������

%������
������
������������&��

' !"����	�
��$��������
��������
��

�
���������
����
���
������(��"�
���

��

�����
���
��������
��


����	������

�
(��
�����
��
�����

!"����	�
�������)�������
�������

�
���������
����
���


����	������

����)���
������
���
�����
	���������

��
�������)����
�������)
����
���
���

	

����������

�

* !"����	�
����������
�����"��


���������������)���
���������������

�
���������������������

"�
���

�����������

!"����	�
����������������������)���

�����
������
���������
�������

�
�����������"�������
����
��

�����

"�����"����
������������

�

+ !"����	�
���"
��	�
���
����)���

����
�����"
����)���������
��������


������������
�����"���%��������
�
��

����
��	��������	�
��&��

� �

, !"����	�
���
����
����
�
����������
���

�"������"
���������
����"��)
��������"��

��	�
����

!"����	�
��������
����
�����
�
��

���������
����"��������
������

���

�"��)
��������"����	�
�������"��


����������

!"����	�
�����)������
��
���
��

��������"
��������
�
�����������
���

�"���������"�(

����"����	�
��$��

)
����
������

���

� �

Meeting Packet - Page 81



�����������	��
���	�
�����
��
�������
�������������������������������
�

��  !����	�
��������
�����"
��
�����!��

����
��"��������������
�����������������

 !����	�
���������
�
�#������������
��

��
���������
��
����������
���



��!������$������
�����
���
�
��%��

�!�����

����������
����������������


���������������������
���������

�

�

Meeting Packet - Page 82



����������	��
���	
�����
��
����������
�����������������

������� !"#$��%!&�$'(')!*+(�,(', -!"'�.'(//��.0

�����
�����������1�����21�
2
��1����2����2�32�
2���	�
��1�����������21��������������	���������1���1����1�21�����1��

����
���

�1
�1
����
���
���
�4�
����
���������������1������1�

�������
��41����
2�
����������1��
���	��5����
��������1�
���
�1�
���41����

�1
�����
������4��1�
�����������������2��2���2����	�
���
���1
����������1������1
�����������
���1���31���
������3��2��13�

������
�����
��������41���5������2
�����������21���


�1��
�
���4�

����
��
�4
�
1�1����
��31���
���21����1����
�����3�2��6����
��

�����
���������1�
���1
�
���������21�
����
����������
1��
���
��
�������
�4
��1������3�������
���������7����
���
�
����
�����8��8

�����1���3��5�2��������1��
�1
��4����
������1�������91
�1
����
�������
���
��	
����
�
������
�����
���1�
���
�1����1�

�����3��2�

��21:;<=><?@A<BCDDE>=?FG<H:CI:JDD=>I<BJ><JK;C<;A:LA<J;<CE?:AJB@<?C<?@A<BCDDE>=?F<J>M<N:CDC?=C><CO<?@A<K=P:J:FQ;<;A:L=BA;<PF<

���1�����
�3��1�4
��1������141�����2
��
��1
�����	��2��1���
��
����13���1��������
����
��	1���8�1������4����
������2�	���R��21���
��

��
���1���
������
����1�1��1�8�1��141����
��31���
�������������1�������1��8���1
�1��

��4���1��	���
������������
���������������41����

31�
��1��1���1����
���
�1���
	�����1�����1�����1���
���	

5���������

STUVWUXW0 YZX[0 \VT[X][W\UT[0 UŴUVY[W0

_0 2̀1���	�
������4��1�������
������
���


�1����11����
2
��1�������
�
����

�1
�41���	
�����

2̀1���	�
������4��1��4����
�����2�	����

�����
���321�1�
�������
�1��

a0 2̀1���	�
��������3��
�����

�����
�1��


����1�1�
��


1���	������

�1b���1�1��������21���1�1��
��������

��8�1�����
���4����
�������
����

2̀1���	�
�������41�������4��1�4
������

���1����������
���
���
��
��������




�����
�1��
���������
���
	�����1��

c1�������3����2������1�2
�
1��
����d��

2̀1���	
����1�������1��

�1��

�����
��������
�����3��2���1
���
�

�11���c1�����
��������1�1���
����3�

4�����d��

e0 2̀1���	�
���2
��
�	�
��8
����41��

�����
����������
������
���
�1���2
��

��
���1��
������
��������1�����1����


2
��1��1���

Meeting Packet - Page 83



�����������	��
��	�
����
��
�����������
����������������

�� �����	
�����
��
������������

����������
����������������

���
���������
�����������������

���
���
������

������	�
����
�������������

�

���

����
�����
�
���
�����
���
���

�
�
����
�����
�� 
����������������

�������������
����
��
����������

!"##$%&'()*+%,,-*.�

�����	
��
�������
��������

�
������������/������
����


����
��/�������������

�

���
���
�����
��������

����/����

�����	
��

0� �����	
��/
��
�������
���

	
�����
����
��
�
��
�����
�
���

���������	

1�
���
��
��
���

���
����
��
�2���������������

���
��	
����������/
��
�����

3� �����	
���
�
���������/������

�����
��������
�����/����������

���
����
�
���
����/���4�����

��	
����
�����������/�����

/������������	
����
���������

��
���
���
���������
��

������������������
�����

/����������5���������������

���
���

������	�
������/�������
�����
���������

	������

��
�������������������

�����
���������������
���/�����


����������

�����	�
�����������

���

�����
�����
��
��������������
���



��������������5������
���
���

����������������
����������

Meeting Packet - Page 84



�����������	��
���	�
�����
��
�������
��������������
������
�������������������

��� !" #$%&'� ($) '*+*,$-.+!/+*/#0$-+12.,$3$452*62!(,$%*27+*2/!2##8

��	��
���	�
���������9�����	��:��
������
���������
��������
�������
���:;�����������	�
������;�����;
9��:���������
���
�������
�������

�
�
����
�����
�����
������
��
�������������
�����
������
�������
�9�������	�
�����
����;�����	��:���<9���������
����������
��
���

�
�������
��������
����
��������
����
���;
9����
���������;�:����;
����������
��������
������:��;��
����������

�����
���
��������
��

�
�����
����������
���
:���;�����	����9��:������
������
��	
�����������
����
����

���;
����	�
������
���
�����������������


������

�����:��;��;��
���������
����������������������

=>?@A?BA8 CDBE8 F@>EBGEAF?>E8 ?AH?@CEA8

I8 J;����	�
���;
��
�
������

�����

�����
������K�����;��	�
������
���
���

��	��
��������������;���9�������
�

���
���������������
���

L8 ��
���;
9����
���


��������������
��



���������
�������������
���������

����
�����	�
����
�����;�������9
���

��
����

J;����	�
�����
���;
9����
���


�������


�����	�
���K������9�
�����9������

M����	��������
���
���������N��

J;����	�
���;
��
�������
������
��

�;
��:��K��������9�����
�����
���

�������
����
������������
����
���


������

���������	��;���
���
���

��	��
��

O8 J;����	�
������9�������
������������
���

����
�����
����������
��

����
���������

J;����	�
�����
�������
�����
���

�������
����
�����������:����������

��<	�
���������
���������

���
������������
�����
����������
��

��
���������
���������;����	�
���
����

�����������

����
������������
���M������


����P�Q��R�S����
�N��

T8 J;����	�
���;
��
�	�
���
����9���

�
�����P����
������
����

J;����	�
�����
������
:
�������;��

�
�����P����
������
��
���

�������
����;�:������������������

J;����	�
���;
��
�����

������
������

��
����������
��U���
���
������

���9����
�
����������

Meeting Packet - Page 85



����������	��
���	
�����
��
�������
�������������
������
�������������������
�

�� ��	
�����
�
����� ������!

�
�����

���������

���������������
����

���
����"��������������
������������

����
�
���
��������� �������"���
���


��
����
#���
���!���	���������
���


����"����	��
��

$�������
���%��"�������
����

�������
���������
����&��������
���

�����
����
����"
���%��"�������

������������

'"����	�
��"
���"����"�

��
�����
��������������
��

�����������"
����
��������

��������

��
"
��

������
��
������	�����

�
�������
���
�����	��������

	�����������

(� '"����	
���
���
����
����
#����

������
������������%"�
"�
����������

���
�
��
����
#����������
����

��

�����
���
���
�����


����	������

��
����

� �

)� '"����	
��"
��
���������
��
���

���
�������
��������
��
���"
�����

�
�����


����	��������
����

'"����	�
���
���
������!��%��
���

���
�����"����	�
����������
��
���

����
���������
��
���

'"����	�
��"
��
����

���������
��


����
�������
������
��
������"��

��	��
��"
�����������������	��
���

����

*� '"����	
��"
��
����
�������
�!����

��
���"
�����#�������
�����+�����

��

�������

'"����	�
��"
��
���
"���������
�!����

��
�������"���!�������
��"���

��

���
��������
�	��
��

#��

�

,� '"����	�
��
��������%��"���

�����
���


�������
���������
��
����
�����

�����������������
�
���
����
%���

'"����	�
�����#�����	����
���������


�����������
���
���%��#��%��"���

��


���
�������
��������
��������!
������


������-����������%���
�����
��

��!��

�"�����.����%"�
"��"����	�
���

����
��


���������
��������

�

�

�

Meeting Packet - Page 86



�����������	��
���	�
�����
��
�������
��������������
������
�������������������
�

���  !����	�
��������"��
�����

��
�����
���

��#���������������������
����������


����#�������������
��������

 !����	�
���!
��
��
�����
�
��

�����
�������
����������
����������


����#���������!
�������$��"������
�

�����
��	
�����

�

�

Meeting Packet - Page 87



����������	��
���	
�����
��
��������
�������������������

���� !�"#$%&��'#(�&)*)+#,-* .*)."/#01'2 !�!3+4

��
�����������
��������
���
������
�����	�
������
����������
�����5��������	�
��������
����
5�
���	���������5
��������
������
���


�55���������
��5�������	�
�����������
�6����
��
����������
�����7�
���
�����������
��

�������������7��������������������


�55���������8��5����7������


��������9	��:�������9���������������
������������
��������
����5��������������5
:�����

���

�;�������6�����<����������
���
������6��:���������
���������
���=�
�������������������	�
������
��	��������
������
��	����
������

>��	�����������������
����7��������������������������
������
������������������7
��������
������������������
����	�
�������5
�������7
���


���


����	������
����
��
������������
��6������

?@ABCADC4 EFDG4 HB@GDIGCHA@G4 ACJABEGC4
K4 ������	
����
��
�����

����	������

������
���������;���5����
���

���7�
����

������	�
����
��
���
��������

����

�5�����
�������
��L���
�

��
����������
���

������	�
���
����
���
���
��������

������
�����5������
���=
5�����


������
����5�������������
���

��
������
�55�������������

M4 ������	
����
��
�	�
��
����7���

���������
���
�5��������������
���

������	�
�����7��6��
������
����


�5��������������
�������
������
��

	
�����

N4 ������	
������7�����
������
�����

��5	��������	��
�����
�5��������

������	�
�����������
����������
	�����

����������	��
����������9�������

������	�
���
���6���
����������
	�����

���	��
��
:��9����	��������	��
��

O4 ������	
����
��


�������
���
�����

����7���
�����5
���
���
�����
��������P

������	�
����
��
���
�������
����������

��
����

��
�����7�
�����5
���
���

������
������������
����
�������

������	�
����
��
�����

�������

���
�5�����

Meeting Packet - Page 88



�����������	��
���	�
�����
��
��������
�������������������
�

�� ������	�
����
 �����������������
������

������������
�����
�����
���������
���

��
��������������!
����
�����
���"

#���������$
��������$
�����


�������

������������������
�����

�
�
�����
����
���������
�
�	

 ����

������	�
������#�������
�����
����������

	������

��
������
�!�������
�����
���

��
������
�	�����
���������������
	������

�����
�
���

������	�
���
����
���
���
��

������
�����������������#
��
���

��
������!�
��������������!�������

�!���#�!������������
����
���

��������

%� ��
���
���
$
������
�
���#����
������


#
��
	��������	�
����&���!����
���

����$
���
���
���
	�������

����
���

����������	���
���������
���
	��������

'�������
��
������

����������

!
�����

������
�����
����
���


�(���!���)��

������	�
������#�����
�
���#��

�&���!������������#���
������
���


	��������'�������
���"������ ��	�
�����

�
������

 	
���!�
�)�
����������

�
��������������������

������	�
������#�����
�
���#��

�&���!������������#���
������
���


	������������
��
 �����

*� ������	�
������#��������������


�����

$�����
���$���������$���������
�����



�

�������!�����������������	����

������
���
���������	��
��

������	�
���
���
�����#
��
����
���

���
�����������������
����
��#����

���������������#�
���!�

��
���
����

����
��#���������

������	�
����
��!�����������������

���#�
�����#������
#
��
	�������

�
���#���	

 "������������
����������

!�	������������
��
 �����

+� ������	�
����
��	
��
�
�!!���

�����

���������
��
��������������

�����
�������
����������������	����

��
���
�����	��
������

������	�
�����������

��!�����!�	����

����������
����

�������

������	�
����������#�����
�������
����

�&���!����
�����

���

� �

Meeting Packet - Page 89



����������	��
���	
�����
��
��������
�������������������
�

�� ������	
�����
�
������ �������

��
����������������
��
������ 
!���

 �"� ������

������	�
���������� 
!��������#������

"�����

 �
����$���������������
��


��"���������"�
��%�������������&

������������
��
!&������

������	
��������
� 
!����

�������


�����

������
�������
��

!��������
	�����������'��� �����

�

Meeting Packet - Page 90



11. DIRECTOR’S REPORT
for December 2025 Board Meeting  submitted by Jason Stuhlmann 

2025 Year in Review 
As volunteers and representatives of the community, I just wanted to point out how 
much work you do on a monthly basis and everything that you accomplished this past 
year. You should be proud of all you’ve done. 

• Personnel – showing continued support of staff is much appreciated!
ο Supported updated wage scale and cost of living raises for staff 
ο Employee Handbook Policy -  

 Added the opportunity to work remotely
 Officially added annual service awards
 Added textbooks to tuition reimbursement
 Added new support for accommodations, ODRISA, VESSA, etc.

ο Completed the Director’s annual evaluation 
ο Approved closure of the library for staff in-service day 
ο Supported creation of Community Engagement & Outreach Coordinator 
ο Posted, interviewed and selected a new Trustee due to a vacancy 

• Policies – Reviewed and updated
ο Library Card Policy 
ο Art Exhibits Policy 
ο Meeting Room Policy 
ο Study Room Policy 
ο Immigration Authority Visits Policy (new) 
ο Prhobiting Harassment, Discrimination & Retaliation Policy 
ο Libel & Slander Policy 
ο Negligent Misrepresentation Policy 
ο Indemnification & Insurance Policy 

• Financial Responsibilities
ο Working Budget 
ο Budget & Appropriation 
ο Tax Levy 
ο Approved various associated documents and certifications for the above 
ο Supported the Director in trying to make more investment interest for the 

Library, including opening an IL Funds account 
• Other Annual Responsibilities

ο Meeting schedule ordinance 
ο Approved Non-Resident Library Card Participation 
ο Approved IPLAR and Per Capita Grant for the state 

• Strategic Plan
ο Participated in surveys and focus group 
ο Crafted new Mission and Vision statements 
ο Reviewed, gave directional input, and approved updated Plan 

• Misc.
ο Attended ILA Trustee Day 

Meeting Packet - Page 91



ο Attended other workshops and dinners for networking and professional 
development 

ο Supported and joined staff in the annual 3rd of July Parade 
ο Supported and volunteered at our first FanCon 

2026 Calendar of Responsibilities 
And in continuation of all the work that you accomplished in 2025, following my report 
you will find the 2026 Calendar of Responsibilities (Trustee Edition), outlining all the 
items that we’ll work on each month next year. 

Miscellaneous 

• Completed and submitted the Illinet Interlibrary Loan & Reciprocal Borrowing
Statistical Survey to the IL State Library. Thank you to Paul & Laurie for their
help.

• Harassment Training – Just a reminder that Trustees should try to take this 1-
hour training module before the end of 2025.  Please let Jason know if you are
having any trouble logging in to view it.

Meetings & Programs for November 

• One-on-one meetings with Managers
• Vacation (November 1-9)
• Meeting with Dolly Parton Imagination Library w/Connie & Mayor Johnson

(November 11)
• Management Team Meetings (November 11)
• Covered MS Desk (November 14)
• All Staff Morning Meeting (November 17)
• LIRA Insurance Membership Meeting (November 20)
• Safety Committee Meeting (November 20)
• Meetings with Liam from City to discuss Merry Market (November 21)

Trainings & Webinars for November 

• NARCAN Administration Webinar

Meeting Packet - Page 92



STATISTICAL SNAPSHOT
Nov 
2025

Oct 
2025

Sep 
2025

Aug 
2025

July
2025

June
2025

May
2025

Apr
2025

Mar
2025

Feb
2025

Jan
2025

Dec
2024

Nov
2024

TOTAL CIRCULATION (physical items) 13,699 14,496 13,719 15,140 16,705 15,534 13,862 14,018 14,735 13,092 13,932 12,192 12,966
  WPLD items checked out at WPLD 9,177 7,653 7,501 7, 760 9,835 9,666 9,443 9,223 8,241 7,282 7,972 6,037 7,247
  Auto-renewals of WPLD Items 4,522 4,450 4,302 5,501 4,580 4,239 4,419 4,795 4,676 4,136 4,039 4,723 4,167
  Other Library Items Checked out at WPLD 1,928 2,393 1,916 1,879 2,290 1,629 1,701 1,832 1,818 1,674 1,921 1,432 1,552

DOWNLOADABLE CIRCULATION 3,655 3,931 3,765 3,918 4,252 3,973 3,941 3,788 4,047 3,559 4,029 3,613 3,631
   OverDrive/Libby 1872 1983 1971 2,007 2,300 2059 2065 2001 2107 1877 2139 1,948 1,987
   OverDrive (magazines) fka RB Digital 343 431 382 375 378 371 343 395 361 298 396 295 327
   Hoopla 1440 1517 1412 1,536 1,574 1543 1533 1392 1579 1384 1494 1370 1317

INTERLIBRARY LOANS
   Received from SWAN Libraries 1,866 2,311 1,818 1,790 2,178 1,550 1,597 1,755 1,738 1,587 1,856 1,363 1,450
   Received from Non-SWAN Libraries 3 21 20 5 18 18 12 17 17 16 21 14 15
   Sent to SWAN Libraries 1,324 1,595 1,501 1,653 1,813 1,761 1,563 1,634 1,605 1,419 1,834 1,902 1,525
   Sent to Non-SWAN Libraries 4 10 8 9 8 12 11 8 16 25 20 25 18

COLLECTION 
   Physical Materials Added 477 292 462 489 589 439 802 482 425 527 394 371
   Physical Materials Withdrawn 564 393 183 1,216 2,332 102 469 304 910 391 341 261
   Total Collection Size 142,606     142,759    141,059   145,454 145,965 140,647 145,962 145,595 145,931 146,118 146,746 147,014 
      Physical materials 74,081 74,087 71,905 76,148 76,564 76,068 76,297 76,306 76,332 76,137 76,104 75,826
      OverDrive books 47118 47250 47414 47,843 48,003 48,120 43,304 48430 48033 48355 48751 49415 49,881
      OverDrive audiobooks 21304 21275 21258 21,311 21,303 21,281 21,275 21235 21256 21244 21230 21227 21,307

PROGRAMS
  Number of Adult Programs 21 29 27 23 20 20 18 18 19 17 21 14 19
  Adult Program Attendance 197 322 327 1149 701 364 196 164 274 207 220 150 241
  Number of Teen Programs 8 8 9 6 6 8 9 6 8 8 6 7 7
  Teen Program Attendance 62 30 46 21 56 82 173 37 74 32 26 48 35
  Number of Youth Programs 24 29 20 15 26 33 18 30 25 30 31 20 29
  Youth Program Attendance 601 785 457 290 641 793 659 819 716 484 547 324 550
  Book-A-Librarian Sessions 14 14 14 10 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 8 11
  Book-A-Librarian Attendance 4 1 7 3 6 3 4 5 6 3 4 4 4

OUTREACH
  Adult Outreach Events 0 2 1 2 1 1 1 3 0 1 0 0 0
  Adult Outreach Attendance 0 125 50 360 12 15 30 78 0 12 0 0 0
  Teen Outreach Events 2 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
  Teen Outreach Attendance 22 20 0 0 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0
  Youth Outreach Events 4 6 1 3 5 3 8 5 4 2 6 3 1
  Youth Outreach Attendance 460 718 157 738 524 214 1621 495 325 195 180 87 11

LIBRARY CARDS
  Total Resident Cards Active 9,751 9,736 9,682 9,628 9,594 9,531 9,484 9,437 9,456 9,550 9,613 9,590 9,546
  Resident Cards Issued In Person 38 76 60 62 79 59 60 44 56 42 32 51 57
  Online Cards Issued 19 12 11 15 9 7 9 9 10 10

VISITOR COUNT 7,335 8,569 10,658 10,564 10,989 10,685 10,341 9,374 9,556 8,363 7,392 7,549 9,238
STUDY ROOM USES 297 315 331 282 389 339 311 326 313 282 274 285 284
MEETING ROOM USES (public) 7 10 7 2 0 3 8 6 4 6 4 3 2
CURBSIDE PICKUPS 15 8 12 11 15 7 12 11 18 6 14 6 5

COMPUTERS & TECHNOLOGY
  Computer Sessions 508 440 611 598 741 618 632 644 716 557 527 509 552
  Wifi Sessions 2489 2767 2646 2448 2930 2548 2338 2410 990 2151 2473 2707 2252
  Website Visits 22,152 17,665 16,456 22,077 19,430 19,356 20,960 15,443 17,653 19,380 15,056 11,051 12,804

MARKETING
  eNews Subscribers 7,152 7,162 7,109 6,780 6,771 6,760 6,771 6,720 6,731 6,720 6,674 6,640 6,648
  eNews Open Rate 58% 53% 53% 52% 53% 53% 52% 50% 52% 54% 46% 52% 52%
  Facebook Followers 2,171 2,154 2,140 2,131 2,109 2,088 2,064 2,034 1,994 1,978 1,956 1,935 1,917
  Instagram Followers 630 624 613 604 602 598 590 580 565 564 556 557 552

Meeting Packet - Page 93



12a.   ASSISTANT TO THE DIRECTOR REPORT 

November 2025     Submitted by: Jackie Davis 

 Administration 

• Sent financials to Accounting Services for processing
• Processed checks for signature and mailing
• Made two bank deposits for daily receipts and copy machines
• Transferred funds from Propay to Fifth Third
• Transferred funds from Paypal to Fifth Third
• Went to the post office to mail ILL’s
• Monitor the meeting room reservations
• Compiled the November board meeting minutes for review by the Secretary
• Organized 2 pickups from the Warrenville Food Pantry – again had over 500 lbs.
• Made copies of the new Employee Handbook and related documents for Ian to

distribute to all staff.

 Meetings and Continuing Education 

• Management Team meeting on November 11
• RAILS Narcan Webinar – November 13
• Attended the November 17 Staff Day – also purchased donuts for the meeting

Maintenance - Ly Tran 

• Continues to maintain the building daily Monday-Friday
• Washed the windowsills on the building
• Arranged the meeting room for programs every week, sometimes twice a day
• Ly is checking and replacing batteries as needed monthly
• Changes the staff lounge water bottles as needed and installed a new cartridge filter
• Changes elevator lights as needed
• Had to rod the kitchen sink due to a flood that occurred in the Staff Lounge
• Programmed lockers for new staff members
• Removed all combination locks from the staff lockers and put in new batteries
• Adjusted front door closure
• Installed the wonderful bright light at the Stafford Place entrance
• Cleared snow and salted sidewalks when necessary
• Helped load the food in the food pantry van
• Installed a new bracket for the changing table in the Family Restroom
• Helped with the Christmas lights extension cords, timers, etc.
• Attended the November 17 Staff Day
• Put up the holiday decorations on the ledge on the main level
• Brought in the lower-level return bin on some mornings when staff was not in

attendance

Meeting Packet - Page 94



12b. PUBLIC SERVICES REPORT 
November 2025 Submitted by Paul Dobersztyn 

Highlights 
• The library hosted 49 total events in November with 702 participants.
• We hosted 4 passive programs that included the Day of the Dead Ofrendas and Crafts

to Go: Thanksgiving, hosting about 158 participants.
• The third Sunday Music Matinee featured Alloy Horn Quartet on 11/30 with 48 in

attendance.
• Diana Abraham and Julie Kurtis hosted the first ever Toy Swap at WPLD in November.

Gently used toys were donated throughout the month of October, collected and
cleaned by staff. Donators were given early access to swap out toys. The Toy Swap
was held over two days. 80 participants total and 425 toys swapped throughout the
process. Leftover toys were brought to the Johnson Family Dinner and donated to the
community. The Library received a lot of positive feedback regarding the program and
we were asked several times if we will hold it again in the future.

• Diana Abraham was approached to be on the Winfield Township Mental Healthy board
and will be attending her first meeting on December 1st. Diana will be the only member
representing Warrenville.

• Diana’s final Toddler Time was held on 11/20, over 60 people were in attendance. I
want to thank Diana for her amazing contributions to Toddler Time and to the Youth
Services Department as whole! We are so lucky to have her!

• The month of November was a busy time with our Discovery Room when Kyrie Kenn-
Sumrak transformed it into a Friendsgiving Feast. The play area saw heavy use during
our week off from school, with lots of little friends meeting up to play. Although it may
come across as simple play, this dramatic play theme helps families to develop new
language, use sneaky math skills, practice sequencing and social skills.

• Fall Back Reading Challenge (Adult) – Started September 1, 2025, completed
November 30, 2025.

o Total Participation
 71 registrants
 58 completions
 193,014 minutes read

o Grand prize names were drawn on December 1st, and winners were notified. All
prizes were claimed right away!

Professional Development 
• 33 sessions of CE were completed by the Public Services Department in November.
• 29.5 total hours of CE were completed.
• Topics covered include: Aspen Admin Training, Fall and Winter Picture Books, All-

Staff Meeting and more.
o A full list can be provided by the Public Services Manager.

• Julie Kurtis is enrolled in a New Manager Course. It’s a several week course and they
have covered a variety of relevant library topics.

o Week 6: Handling emergencies and crisis
 Knowing your limitations, triggers, abilities, etc. to prepare for the scenarios you

can’t be prepared for
o Week 7: data for decision making

Meeting Packet - Page 95



 Avoiding the use of anecdotal “data” to make decisions (ex. 3 people told me 
we should do such and such program- this is not data but it can provide a 
question to pursue data on)  

o Week 8: promoting career development 

 
Personnel 

• Anushka is on her 9th week at the library. She has completed several projects 
including sanitizing the Discovery Room, assisting with putting together craft kits and 
dusting our bookshelves. It has been a very easy process to supervise and coordinate. 
 
 

Reading Challenges 
 

• 500 Books Before Fifth Grade – Started September 1, 2025 
o Total Participation 

 28 registrants 
 0 completions 
 1,260 total books read so far. 

• 1000 Books Before Kindergarten  
o Total participation: 

 207 registrants 
 29 completions 
 56,676 total books read so far. 

• The 100 Books Before High School  
o Total participation since the launch: 

 89 registrants 
 2,421 total books read 
 11 completions so far 

 
 
Programming / Outreach / Meetings (Not entered in Communico) 
Book a Librarian: 4 Puzzles: 2 / Teen Volunteers: 9 (10 total hours) 
Homebound Deliveries: 3 Deliveries/Pickups, 7 items checked out, 5 total participants 
 

• Diana Abraham represented the library at the Park District Healthy Heroes event on 
11/1, interacting with ……. 

• Kyrie Kenny-Sumrak, Diana Abraham, Julie Kurtis, Mandy Wilson, Michelle DeGrace 
and Paul Dobersztyn attended a Youth Services Programming Meeting on 11/3. 

• Miriam Montano, Tom Hill, Taylor Haring and Paul Dobersztyn attended an Adult 
Services Programming Meeting on 11/6. 

• Diana Abraham met with Sheila Mikulik from Warrenville Horizons on 11/11. 
• Paul Dobersztyn attended a Management Team Meeting on 11/11. 
• Diana Abraham provided a storytime to the Agape Preschool on 11/11. 
• Julie Kurtis visited several 2nd Grade classrooms at Johnson on 11/13 interacting with 

75 students.  
• Mark Arellano met with Paul Dobersztyn to discuss Adult Services programming on 

11/14. 
• Diana Abraham delivered a prize basket to the Bower Family Bingo Night on 11/13. 
• Mandy Wilson and Diana Abraham attended the Warrenville Community Advisory 

Council meeting on 11/17. 
Meeting Packet - Page 96



• Julie Kurtis, Taylor Haring, Mandy Wilson and Paul Dobersztyn attended a FanCon
planning committee meeting on 11/17.

• Julie Kurtis, Diana Abraham and Paul Dobersztyn met with book vendor Rob Innes on
11/18.

• Paul Dobersztyn met with members of the Wheaton-Warrenville League of Women’s
Voters on 11/18 to discuss tabling during election season 2026.

• Diana Abraham attended the City of Warrenville IDEC meeting of the Whole on 11/18.
• Julie Kurtis visited ACES Academy on 11/19 and interacted with 10 students.
• Diana Abraham attended the Johnson Family Dinner on 11/20. This was the largest

turnout they’ve ever gotten with 256 in attendance.
• Taylor Haring and Paul Dobersztyn attended a Safety Committee Meeting on 11/20.
• During Family Storytime we play a special guessing game called Miss Mouse, during

which we are practice turn taking, color recognition as well as our patience. I knew the
kids were going to miss our game over break, so I made each family their own kit to
take home, about 20 sets in total. – Kyrie Kenny-Sumrak.

• Mandy Wilson created 20 craft kits for the Outreach: Warrenville Quest program. She
has been collaborating with them as of late, and will host more programs for them in
the future.

• Diana Abraham contacted the advisors for the Art Club/National Art Honor Society.
They have accepted a collaboration with our Teen Associate, Mandy Wilson. They will
be working with the high school students in creating an art project for display in our
Teen Lounge. I will also request paintings or drawings to display in our quiet room
from the Art Club (completed with initial meeting 11/25).

Non SWAN InterLibrary Loan  
Item Requests Processed: 18; Materials Received: 3; Materials Lent: 4 

Strategic Plan Updates 
• Learn & Grow: Collections- Separated the Young Adult Graphic Novels from the

Manga and created two sections for browsing. – Julie Kurtis
• Learn & Grow: Offerings – Toy Swap program was appreciated by the public as a

whole. – Julie Kurtis

Meeting Packet - Page 97



12c. MEMBER SERVICES REPORT 
November 2025 Submitted by Laurie Rex 

 

Circulation Transaction Location # of transactions % of transactions 

Self Checkout* 7,426 54.21% 

Aspen catalog/mobile app (Renewals) 168 1.23% 

Autorenewals 4,522 33.0% 

Staff Assisted Checkout 1,583 11.56% 

TOTAL TRANSACTIONS 13,699 100.00%  

   

*Selfcheck Usage Details # of transactions % of transactions 

Selfcheck 1 (Near Member Services Desk) 4,159 56.0% 

Selfcheck 2 (Near Vending Machine) 3,267 44.0% 

TOTAL TRANSACTIONS 7,426 100.00% 

 
Department Highlights 

Curbside 
We had 15 Curbside Pickups, 9unique users, in November. 
 
Continuing Education 
Member Services staff participated in 8.75 hours of Continuing Education in November. 
 
Meetings 
I attended 1 Management Team meeting, a 1-on-1 meeting with Jason, and 1 Safety Committee 
meeting. 
 
Personnel 
We are fully staffed in Member Services. 
 
Projects 

• Searched for items checked out to Cataloging, Missing, items that are long overdue, etc. 
Found quite a few and got them checked in properly. 

 

Meeting Packet - Page 98



12d. ACQUISITIONS & CATALOGING REPORT 
November 2025                     Submitted by MaryKellie Marquez 

 

Collection Maintenance 

• 407 items created 
• 686 items discarded 
• 46 items repaired 
• 36 discs cleaned 

 

Projects/Training/Continuing Education *Details are noted in Teams Learning Log. 

MaryKellie 

• Plowed through November doing inventory and running reports in the Youth 
Department. 

• Met with Vickie Totton, Lucas McKeever, Sam Dietel, and Michael Szarmach from 
SWAN to discuss inventory 11/5/25. 

• KnowBe4 Artificial Intelligence training 11/7/25. 
• Met with Duncan Jones to go over One Note 11/13/25. 
• Paylocity Anti-harassment annual training 11/25/25. 
• Ryan Dowd training, “Self-Care for Burnout, Vicarious Trauma and Moral Injury” 

11/25/25. 

Gail 

• Worked with LTA intern Jessica B. on puzzle processing, book repairs, A/V repairs 
and book processing. 

• Completed Narcan training 11/13/25. 
• All staff meeting 11/17/25. 
• “Modern Book Mending” program 11/20/25. 
• Looked for books that had not been inventoried. 
• Assisted with the Juvenile Fiction Inventory scanning. 

 

 MaryKellie’s Meetings: 

• Management Team meeting 11/11/25. 
• RAILS Catalyst Leadership Program November meeting 11/11/25. 
• LACONI TSS Unconference 11/14/25. 
• All staff meeting 11/17/25. 
• Board meeting 11/19/25. 
• ATLAS MMRT 11/21/25. 
• SWAN Fireside chat 11/25/25. 

Meeting Packet - Page 99



12e. HUMAN RESOURCES 
November 2025           Submitted by Ian Stevens  

Highlights  
• Successfully launched the new Employee Handbook to all the staff after a lengthy but

thorough revision project with Jason and HR Source attorneys. 

Staff/Recruiting  
• We currently have no open positions at the library. Mid November Ruby started at

Member Services to fill that open position. 

HR Procedures  
• Ran payrolls in Paylocity on 11/10 and 11/124
• Onboarded new staff Ruby (11/18). Her first day was completing legal documents,

having a tour of the library, meeting with IT, and then department training.
• IMRF: November payroll to accountant 11/26. October Wage Report submitted 11/5.
• Paylocity upgraded their payroll process. The in-house documentation has now been

created for authorized staff. In the new year, Jason will be trained.
• The handbook was reviewed by an HR Source attorney this year. Jason and I added the

recommendations which the Board approved at the October meeting. The formatting
was finalized before printing. Staff received their copy prior to the staff meeting 11/17.

• Open enrollment for 2026 benefits began November 10th through the 21st for eligible
staff. Everyone completed their selections/declines on time.

• Rolled out the annual Anti-Harassment training to all staff, completion by year end.
Managers do a two-hour course; the rest of the staff are assigned a one-hour course.

  Meetings  
• Management Team meeting 11/11
• Final handbook meetings with Jason to go over printing and distribution.
• Monthly one-one with Jason to discuss HR matters 11/12
• Board meeting 11/19
• Safety committee meeting 11/20
• Staff meeting 11/17
• HR Source Employment Law conference in Naperville 11/13
• Meet with various staff to discuss a variety of HR issues/topics/policies including

benefits, coverage, safety and my door is always open

Training/Continuing Education/Webinars 
• RAILS - Libraires and Immigration Enforcement 11/17
• HR Source – Employment Law conference 11/13
• ILA HR Documentation 11/19 Library Grants 11/12
• Know Be4 – Inside Man S5 Ep 9-12 IT security 11/21, AI awareness 11/10

Meeting Packet - Page 100



12f. IT DEPARTMENT REPORT 
November 2025 Submitted by Duncan Jones 

User Support 
• I helped staff with OneNote, MFA, printing, LinkedIn Learning and Teams.

Troubleshooting 
• I resolved a printing issue with the YS public printer.
• I resolved an issue with the Incident Form not being accessible by staff.
• I resolved an issue with Public PC logins timing out.
• I resolved an issue with a staff PC not needing a password.
• I resolved an issue with a flickering public PC monitor by replacing it.
• I investigated an issue with the AS public printer streaks.
• I investigated an issue with the EZ Scan Station not booting up. I contacted our support

vendor who is building a replacement unit.
• I resolved a projector desync, causing the unit to not respond to the touch panel.
• I replaced a part causing issue with staff laptops failing on several machines.

Project/Goal 
• I worked with our practicum student to teach about library IT departments.
• I onboarded our new employee and helped both new employees set up MFA on their

email.
• I coordinated resetting account passwords.
• I edited and uploaded the November all staff meeting and board meeting.
• I investigated the situation and changed passwords after a staff member clicked a

potential phishing email.
• I installed a new art program on several staff PCs as requested.
• I updated the OS and software on various laptops and servers.

Planning 
• I researched options for replacement staff laptops.

Meetings 
• I attended the November all staff meeting.
• I met with our HP account manager to set up an enterprise account.
• I met with Gail and MaryKellie to go over OneNote.
• I met with the Management Team.
• I met with Jason.

Training 
• KnowBe4

Tickets
• 10 opened, 9 closed, 5 pending

Meeting Packet - Page 101



12g. Marketing Department REPORT 
November 2025 Submitted by Kathy Gaydos 

 
Activities related to producing publicity documents include planning, scheduling, reviewing 
content (written, images and videos), editing, formatting, proofreading, checking color/sizing for 
print and digital media, communicating with staff, distributing to staff, printing for in-house 
display and other tasks. Work on the following marketing deliverables included some or all of 
the above activities plus these tasks worth highlighting: 

 
Winter 2025–2026 Reading Matters (RM) newsletter 

• Approved print-ready file from Hagg Press. 
• Reviewed postage statement from Hagg Press to confirm we have adequate funds. 
• Shared key dates with all staff about when the winter newsletter mails at the post office, 

Communico registration opens and promotion begins for winter events. 
• Updated digital file on our website. 
• Added website spotlight card and article to promote RM and upcoming winter programs. 
• Distributed print copies throughout the building. 
• Delivered print copies to the City and Park District. 
• Added current issue to new cardholder welcome bags. 

 
Event Publicity 

• After the Know Your Rights program for November 6 was cancelled, we removed digital 
slides and flyers from the library and cancelled the program in Communico. 

• Finished designing, scheduling and printing digital slides and flyers for winter programs. 
• Designed a rack card to promote the Winter Reading Challenge; produced 250 copies. 
• Reviewed the Library Launch Kit instructions and social media assets provided by Paul 

for the Sesame Street program about children’s digital literacy that was added to the 
calendar after the winter RM newsletter and related publicity pieces were created. Asked 
several questions about implementing the program and its publicity requirements. 

• Created a series of designs to promote the new program being hosted in partnership 
with Sesame Street.  

• After the Communico calendar opened for registration, I checked that a feature to 
register for a specific time slot within the Escape Room program was working properly. 
While it’s working correctly, the notifications linked to the program still show the general 
time, which will be confusing for registrants. Flagged for Paul who is checking with 
Communico and changed the registration message to call for a specific time. 

 
Overhead Shelf Signage Project 

• Finished cutting and installing all 150+ overhead banner signs. 
• Created and printed additional overhead banner signs for the change from YA graphic 

novels to YA Manga. 
• Ordered replacement knives and blades because the old ones were worn down after so 

much cutting and trimming by hand. 
 
Content Development/Review 

• Toy Swap event: Video recorded the setup of all the donated toys and other items in the 
Meeting Room before the event started. Edited the video to add text about why we did 
this—to address a community need for a location that brings people together for a 
common need; posted on social media: 1,314 views; 65 reactions (likes, comments, 
shares); reach=1,383 

• Asked MaryKellie to share the text from her speech of Gail receiving her 10-year 
certificate and used it to create an eNews article with a link to the Board meeting video. 

• Wrote an article for eNews reminding the community that we are a collection site for the 
Immanuel Presbyterian Church Food Pantry; included a link to DuPage County’s food 
pantries and other resources.  

Meeting Packet - Page 102



• Wrote a website news article about winter events, highlighting new programs and/or
those of potential interest; used some of this same content for an eNews article
promoting the registration of winter events.

• Edited Stephanie’s website content about Museum Adventure Pass and Explore More
Illinois and added more information on how to secure the passes for each program.

David’s Activities…in addition to the creation, revisions, production and distribution of 
publicity materials and website updates as noted above… 

• Worked with COD practicum student Jessica to produce a rack card design as part of
her class requirement. Her recommendation to read Romantasy books will be used to
help promote WRC. We covered basic tools and methods for using Adobe Photoshop,
Illustrator and InDesign. Design strategies and resources were also discussed.

• Advised Mandy on possible software solutions for creating vector designs and files for
use in updating the FanCon mascot and special-edition library card image.

• Helped Gail create new sticker alignment tools for Technical Services.
• Helped Ruby set up her email signature.
• Helped review and make adjustments to 4imprint Winter Reading Challenge prize order.
• Designed a decorative label for a bingo outreach prize basket.
• Contacted MessageBee to resolve a media upload error—updated MessageBee footer

to promote Reading Matters.
• Created updated design files for 2026 library closings.
• Reviewed Winter Reading Challenge content in Beanstack.
• Did some research and submitted a request for purchase for some new cutting

materials.

Community Outreach 
• Prepped a Go Boxes for Diana’s use at Johnson School Family Dinner on November 20.
• Met briefly with Diana to learn about the Warrenville Smiles campaign implemented by

IDEC; the library will be a featured site beginning in January and we need to work out a
few logistics.

Administrative 
• To welcome and provide orientation for Michelle about Marketing activities, I emailed her

with several key points about what our department handles and how we interact with
Public Services. A link to our Brand Style Guide was included for her to familiarize
herself with how we handle our brand assets, logo applications and style standards, as
well as library lingo and WPLD lingo. Also, provided the link for Michelle to take last
May’s Safety Topic quiz.

• Reminded Management Team and a few others where to find signs if the library closes
due to a weather situation and the Marketing staff are not in the building.

• When the library experienced an Unplanned Closing because of the weather on
November 29, I worked from home to create messaging for eNews, social media posts
and website banner. I also checked with Tom to make sure he knew which closing sign
to put on the entrance doors.

Miscellaneous 
• Reviewed and responded to an email sent by Paul about the county’s response to the

reduction in SNAG benefits, suggesting ways the library should share the information.
• Responded to two inquiries about location and quantity of Out of Service signs.
• Provided the City with files of our new logo for use on their website and social media.
• Meetings/Webinars

Kathy: 
o 11/03/25: KnowBe4: AI Safety Trainings
o 11/19/25: Board Meeting
o 11/25/25: Webinar: Social Media and Your Job

Meeting Packet - Page 103



David: 
o 11/13/25: Webinar: Communico: Broadcast
o 11/17/25: KnowBe4: AI Safety Trainings
o 11/26/25: Paylocity: Anti-Harassment Training

Website activities related to maintaining website such as creating, reviewing and editing 
content; monitoring and responding to issues. In November, added a webpage titled Free 
Passes about Museum Adventure Pass and Explore More Illinois. Updated/formatted the 
Reading Challenge webpage with the WRC content and made it visible. Also, asked Jason to 
request clarification from Communico about the status of several website modules as we work 
towards creating an accessible website.  

eNews activities related to producing biweekly newsletters and new cardholder welcome 
emails: planning, writing, editing, proofreading content; selecting/sizing images; linking; testing drafts; 
importing, monitoring and segmenting contact lists; monitoring responses.  
In November, investigated why new staff member Michelle was not receiving eNews after she 
had subscribed.  

• eNews (Constant Contact) stats:
o Subscribers: 7,152
o Average open rate: 58%
o New Cardholders campaign—average open for 8 sends: 67%

Social Media activities related to managing three social media platforms: 
planning what events and resources are included; reviewing file photos or slides (take photos and create 
as needed); posting/changing cover pages and profiles; scheduling; monitoring local agencies and other 
libraries; responding to staff requests for additional social media support; monitoring and responding to 
public comments; implementing ad spending; sharing public comments posted on our platforms with staff; 
reviewing stats and updating content tracking documents.  
In November… 

• Posted photo Kyrie took of her Family Reading Night program.
• Tooks photos and videos of Diana’s last official Toddler Time program to use in social

media.
• Posted newspaper clippings from 1978 that Gail found at the Historical. One showed the

cost to make a copy at the library is the same now as it was then…$.10/page. Another
had a picture of young children touring the library. This was posted to encourage people
to contact our new Outreach Coordinator to arrange a tour.

• Created posts to remind people they could use our 3D printer to generate turkey name
card holders for their holiday meals; let Paul and Duncan know they might be getting
more orders.

• Social Media stats:
o Facebook Followers: 2,171
o Instagram Followers: 630

Meeting Packet - Page 104



Popular FB post in November: 1,889 views; 76 reactions (likes, comments, shares); 
reach=1,242 

Meeting Packet - Page 105



13. PRESIDENT’S REPORT

Next Library Meetings or Events as of December 5, 2025 

• Wednesday, January 21 at 7 pm
Regular Board Meeting in Library Meeting Room

• Wednesday, February 18 at 7 pm
Regular Board Meeting in Library Meeting Room

• Wednesday, March 18 at 7 pm
Regular Board Meeting in Library Meeting Room

Meeting Packet - Page 106



14. TREASURER’S REPORT

IL Funds Interest 

• IL Funds – In October we still made $7,726.61 in interest after withdrawing
$750K to put back into the bank.

Meeting Packet - Page 107



Illinois Library Association Conference Oct. 2025 
Donald E. Stephens Convention Center, Rosemont 

Trustee Day was wonderful at the ILA conference this year.  We had 4 trustees attend and I ran 
into 4 different staff there from various departments as well.  Great representation from 
Warrenville! (I also saw some other friends from DuPage!) 

8:00 – 9:00 a.m. The Trustee Breakfast was hosted by the Library Trustee Forum. The 
benefits of the www.iLEAD.org website were explained and the classes to earn badges 
demonstrating learning opportunities explored.

9:00 – 10:00 a.m. Be the BEST Trustee You Can Be Topics included: 
• Public Library Board of Trustees Ethics Statement
• Public Library Board Meetings Open Meetings (5 ILCS 120)
• Closed Meetings (5 ILCS 120)
• Freedom of Information Act (5 ILCS 140)
• Statement of Economic Interest (5 ILCS 420)
• Anti Sexual Harassment Training (Public Act 101-0221)
• Effective Board Meetings
• Parliamentary Procedure Board Structure
• Roles Library Director Role vs. Library Trustee
• Finance Basics
• Intellectual Freedom and Censorship
• Illinois Anti-Book Banning Legislation (PA 103-0100)
• Privacy and Confidentiality (Statutes 75 ILCS 70)
• Policies and Procedures Utilizing the iLEAD Trustee Learning Portal

This session dissolved into elaborate questions regarding libraries where the board of 
trustees and the director or individual trustees did not have a trusting and cooperative 
working relationship. Various diplomatic suggestions were suggested by successful 
and experienced library trustees. 

10:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m.  Coffee Break in the Exhibits Hall LOTS of information! 

15. Secretary's Report

Meeting Packet - Page 108

http://www.ilead.org/


. 
11:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. “Resumania”: Incorporating Job Skills and Programs for 
Teens at your Library. Members of the Naperville and Addison libraries reviewed teen 
programs geared toward future job success.  Naperville had a “bootcamp” where job 
search, resume building and interview skills were all taught and practiced.  Best time to 
offer was spring break and early June.  Addison incorporated a broader approach with a 
youth green team, connections with the vast businesses in town, and a partnership with the 
food pantry creating a free lunch – restaurant style operation where teens learned skills to 
host, serve dispensed food, store food, clean tables and public service. 
 
12:00 – 1:30 p.m. Trustee Day Luncheon: President Tom Stagg spoke of the seven 
legislative forums being set up across the state later this fall.  
 
1:45 – 2:45 p.m. DiversiTEA Closing Keynote: Roy Kinsey, a Chicago-based rapper, 
librarian, and the founder of Rapbrary, presented his innovative platform dedicated to 
preserving hip-hop as a literary art form while advocating for literacy, banned books, and 
marginalized voices in literature. As both an artist and an educator, Roy wove storytelling, 
identity, and cultural preservation into his work, making him a powerful voice at the 
intersection of hip-hop and literature. He performed several of his songs.  Most impressive 
to me was his reading of his yet unpublished D’Angelo and the Dandelion children’s book.  
 

 
 

 3:00 – 4:00 p.m. Advocacy Tips & Tricks from Legislators 
The Illinois Library Association's Advocacy Committee provided some insights about how 
to communicate with local and national legislators. The panel discussion included 
legislators and the art and importance of storytelling creating a “ripple in the pond” sharing 
the good news of what libraries are doing for communities and their residents.  
  
 

 

 

Meeting Packet - Page 109


	04b - Anniversaries - 2025 12 10 Business of the Meeting
	4b. EMPLOYEE ANNIVERSARY RECOGNITION

	06a - Correspondence 2025 12 10 Business of the Meeting
	6. CORRESPONDENCE

	06b - Correspondence 2025-12-03 FOIA & OMA Memo
	07a - 2025 11 19 TITA MEETING MINUTES
	07b - 2025 11 19 Meeting Minutes
	07c - 2025-11 Financial Statements
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6

	07e - 2026 Statement of Economic Interest Certification - for approval
	07f - Ordinance 2025-06 - Fixing regular board meetings - for approval
	08a1 - Payments 2025 12 10 Business of the Meeting
	8a. REGULAR AGENDA
	Approve payments for the period of November 20 – December 10, 2025 (ACTION)


	08a2 - Checklist November 20 - December 10, 2025
	Transaction Detail by Account

	08b - Transfers 2025 12 10 Business of the Meeting
	8b. REGULAR AGENDA
	Approve transfer of funds (ACTION)


	08c1 - Special Reserve R232 - 2025 12 10 Business of the Meeting
	8c. REGULAR AGENDA
	Approve R-232 Resolution to Transfer Monies from the Corporate Fund to the Special Reserve Fund (ACTION)


	09a1 - Policy #360 Art Exhibits 2025 12 10 Business of the Meeting
	9a. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	Approve Updated Policy #360 Art Exhibits (ACTION)


	09a2 - #360 UPDATE - Art Exhibits (effective April 1, 2018) - for board approval 2025-12-10
	Art Exhibits at the Library
	Display Space Available
	Artist Application
	Approval Process
	Planning & Exhibit Information
	Liability
	FOR STAFF USE ONLY
	Waiver of Liability
	Acknowledgement

	10a1 - Policy 111 narrative 2025 12 10 Business of the Meeting
	10a. NEW BUSINESS
	Review updated Policy #111 Remote Attendance & Participation (discussion)


	10b1 - Per Capita Grant - 2025 12 10 Business of the Meeting
	10b. NEW BUSINESS
	Authorize library staff to submit the Per Capita Grant application to the Illinois State Library (ACTION)


	10b2a - FY2026 Per Capita Grant Application
	10b2b - FY2024 Per Capita Grant Expenditures Report
	10b3 - 2025 IL Lib Standards
	Access.pdf (p.1-2)
	Advocacy.pdf (p.3-4)
	Buildings and Grounds.pdf (p.5-7)
	Collection Management.pdf (p.8-10)
	Finance and Budget.pdf (p.11-15)
	Governance Administration.pdf (p.16-19)
	Human Resources.pdf (p.20-22)
	Information Services.pdf (p.23-25)
	Marketing.pdf (p.26-28)
	Programming.pdf (p.29-30)
	Safety Emergency Preparedness.pdf (p.31-33)
	Technology.pdf (p.34-36)

	11a - 2025 12 10 Director
	12a - 2025 11 November Assistant to the Director
	12b - 2025 11 (November) Public Services
	12c - 2025 11 (November) Member Services
	12d - 2025 11 (November) Acquisitions and Cataloging
	12e - 2025 11 (November) Human Resources
	12f - 2025 11 (November) IT
	12g - 2025 11 (November) Marketing
	13 - President 2025 12 10 Business of the Meeting
	13. PRESIDENT’S REPORT

	14 - Treasurer 2025 12 10 Business of the Meeting
	14. TREASURER’S REPORT

	15 - Secretary - 2025 ILA Conference Summary
	11b - Statistics Summary Nov2025.pdf
	Stat Snapshot


	Pg1 Checkbox: Yes
	Prefix1: Mr.
	First Name: Jason
	Last Name 1: Stuhlmann
	Title: Executive Director
	Pronouns: he/him/his
	Todays Date 1: 12/10/2025
	Legal Name of Library: Warrenville Public Library District
	Librarys Control Number: 30685
	Branch Number: 00
	Todays Date: 12/10/2025
	Prefix: Mr.
	Preparers Name: Jason
	Last Name: Stuhlmann
	Preparers Title: Executive Director
	Pronouns 2: he/him/his
	Preparers Phone Number: 630-393-1171
	Email Address: director@warrenville.com
	Address 1: 28W751 Stafford Place
	Address 2: 
	State: IL
	Zip plus four: 60555-3002
	Pg2 certify check box: Yes
	Service Area Population: 15,195
	Pg4 Check Box: Yes
	Access: In addition to the core standards:
- #2 The library is open daytime, evening and weekend hours for 7 days a week, for most of the year.
- #3 The library asked the community about space in its recent strategic planning.
- #4 The library provides a drive-up book drop and homebound delivery.
- #5 The library building has much natural light and utilizes energy efficient lighting.
- #9 The library has a dedicated Teen Lounge space, and offers sensory kits for individuals wanting to use them.
- #12 The library has study rooms and meeting rooms for individual and group use.
	Pg5 Check Box: Yes
	Advocacy and community engagement: In addition to the core standards:
- #2 Library staff attend or host meetings with schools, local government and local organizations to partner for library and community initiatives.
- #4 Library staff and trustees have good relationships, interact and partner frequently with local governmental units, though we could improve at getting to know local and state representatives.
	Pg6 Check Box: Off
	Building and grounds: Working to meet core standards:
- #2 While not finished, the library is currently working on an updated capital improvement plan to forecast repair and replacement of major equipment and infrastructure.
- #6 As the capital improvement plan gets updated, so will an official maintenance checklist.



In addition to the core standards:
- #1 The library has a special reserve fund for capital projects, repairs and renovations;


	Pg7 Check Box: Yes
	Collection Management: In addition to the core standards:
- #3 The library has trained staff responsible for collection development in specific genres, age levels and subjects.
- #7 The library has a "library of things" offering digital tools, board games, memory care kits, etc.
- #10 The library offers access to genealogy resources.

Modified:
- #9 Due to last year's new state law discouraging book banning and censorship, along with the Per Capita Grant's requirement, the Library changed removed the reconsideration process because reconsideration suggested that we might potentially remove or ban a book. Instead, the library created a Statement of Concern Policy to still allow for library members to express concerns about material, displays, etc., but with less emphasis on removing material.

Not applicable:
- #10 While the library has a small collection of local history items (including yearbooks), Warrenville has a Historical Museum that is the main repository for local history.
	Pg8 Check Box: Off
	Finance and budget: In addition to the core standards:
- #1 The library keeps its budget in an electronic spreadsheet format with legacy data.
- #6 The library posts its board meeting, financial, ordinance and resolution information on its website.
- #7 The library has an account through DuPage Foundation where the public can donate funds.
- #8/10 The library has an outside auditor conduct the annual audit, which the board reviews. The library then makes it available to the public through its website.


Working to meet core standards:
- #12 The library has a Fund Balance Policy and an Investment Policy, though not an official long term financial plan. Both policies need to be reviewed this coming year, and a long term plan can be developed alongside that review.

	Pg9 Check Box: Off
	Governance and administration: In addition to the core standards:
- #4 The Library Director presents a report of library activities, statistics, departmental reports, etc. at each monthly meeting.
- #7 The IPLAR is prepared by administration and presented to the board at a public meeting.
- #8 The director regularly includes staff in drafting and reviewing of policies.
- #9 An updated strategic plan was prepared this year with input from the community, staff and trustees, with review and updates throughout the year.
- #11 The board participates in continuing education opportunities when available and appropriate.
- #14 Library staff and board subscribe to e-news, attend workshops, meetings and conferences.
- #15 The library provides the director and other staff membership in professional organizations.



Working to meet core standards:
- #10 Succession Plan - The library does not have a succession plan for the director and will need to develop one.
	Pg10 Check Box: Off
	Human resources: In addition to the core standards:
- #1 The library has sufficient staff levels, and has staff in each department representing the larger minority population in the community.
- #2 The personnel policies have just been reviewed by staff and HR lawyer.
- #4 The salary schedule is reviewed and adjusted each year to keep up with cost of living.
- #5 The library provides expanded benefits of various types, and contributes towards premiums of of health insurance for employees and their dependents.
- #6 The library employs a dedicated HR manager.
- #7 The library has a performance appraisal system with an annual appraisal with goal development as well as professional development opportunity suggestions.
- #8 The library supports and encourages staff for skills and professional development, conference attendance, etc.






Working to meet core standards:
- #9 Succession plan - The library does not have a succession plan for the director and will need to develop one.
NOTE - This item was also in section 6.) Governance

	Pg11 Check Box: Yes
	Information Services: In addition to the core standards:
- #1 The library provides additional service offerings with a maker space and book-a-librarian services.
- #3 The library has policies and procedures for the above mentioned.
- #4 The library has a website providing 24/7 access to information service resources.
- #5 The library has staff specializing in children's, teen, adult, and IT areas.
- #6 The library occasionally hosts representatives to provide information about services.
- #7 The library provides and funds professional development and continuing education opportunities for staff to expand their knowledge and skills.
- #8 The library employs at least one staff in each public facing department that speaks Spanish.

	Pg12 Check Box: Yes
	Marketing and promotion: In addition to the core standards:
- #1 The library has a marketing guide and plan.
- #2 The library has two dedicated employees for marketing and graphic design.
- #4 The library uses its logo consistently across all print and digital marketing platforms, and has adopted a brand style guide.


	Pg13 Check Box: Yes
	Programming: In addition to the core standards:
- #1 The library provides virtual or hybrid programs where appropriate.
- #2 The library designs dedicated programs for neurodivergent members of the community, such as a quarterly Sundays with special hours for neurdiverse families to visit.
- #4 The library partners with local organizations to present programs that address the community's needs.
- #6 The library offers dedicated programs to address a variety of cultures and interests in the community, especially for our Spanish-speaking members, including annual Day of the Dead ofrendas.

	Pg14 Check Box: Yes
	Safety and emergency preparedness: In addition to the core standards:
- #2 The library has a safety committee that updates and maintains the safety manual, as well as plans training for staff.
- #3 The library also provides emergency medical training with CPR, AED, anti-opioid, etc.


	Pg15 Check Box: Yes
	Technology: In addition to the core standards:
- #1 The library has a technology replacement schedule that gets worked into the budget.
- #3 The library offers laptops for the public to use in-house.
- #4 The library has a dedicated IT department (albeit only 1 person + contractual when needed) for maintaining library technology and technology infrastructure.
- #5 The library provides staff with additional cyber security and best practice training.
- #6 The library provides adapative equipment including large-print keyboards, large trackball mice, and screen-reader software.
- #7 The library has multiple internet service provides for failover backup purposes and offers mobile hotspot checkout.
- #8 The library offers facsimile, mobile printing and scanners for the public. The library also offers screens in study rooms for video conferencing, as well as any other needed tech items available for checkout.
- #9 The library offers a 3D printer and Cricut machine for the public to use, with staff trained on their use.
	Planned use of public library per capita grant funds: 
If awarded, grant funds will be used for a variety of purposes:

Collection Management - Funds will be used to continue to support the growth of the collection in a variety of formats, but especially popular digital content such as eBooks and eAudiobooks.

Human Resources - Funds will be used for professional growth and continuing education opportunities for both Board and Staff, focusing on customer service, best practices in serving diverse populations and current trends in library services.

Information Services - Funds will be used to support informational and educational online databases used to meet the needs of the members and staff.

Marketing & Promotion - Funds will be used to support materials to inform the community about library services and resources, thereby increasing awareness and library use.

Programming - Funds will be used for programs and events that appealing to our community's diverse populations, including programs presented in Spanish. Also for high-interest programs that will engage residents who may not otherwise use the library.

Technology - Funds will be used to support the maintenance and growth of our Makerspace.










	Planned use of equalization aid grant funds: 


N/A
	Control Number: 30685
	City: Warrenville
	Library Name: Warrenville Public Library District
	Exact amount of Per Capita Grant received in Fiscal Year 2021: 20932.56
	Check Box1: Off
	Text2: 
	Governance and Administration  Chapter 2: On
	Text3: Members of the Library's Board of Trustees attended ILA Trustee Day and the annual LACONI trustee dinner. This allowed them to network and generally strengthened their understanding of the library landscape and their role as a trustee.
	Personnel  Chapter 3: On
	Text4: Staff participated in numerous in-person and online learning opportunities, including the Reaching Forward and SWAN Expo conferences. These opportunities help staff stay informed of best practices in public libraries, stay networked with other professionals in the field, and allows staff to explore new ideas and services for our residents.
	Access  Chapter 4: Off
	Text5: 
	Building Infrastructure and Maintenance  Chapter 5: Off
	Text6: 
	Safety  Chapter 6: Off
	Text7: 
	Collection Management  Chapter 7: On
	Text8: The library increased its budget for downloadable and streaming materials. Funds also support access to full-text and other searchable databases. By continuing to increase the size of our online collection, we are meeting the needs of the users who prefer digital formats and accessing our collections 24/7 from anywhere.
	System Member Responsibilities and Resource Sharing  Chapter 8: Off
	Text9: 
	Public Services Reference and ReadersAdvisory  Chapter 9: Off
	Text10: 
	Programming  Chapter 10: On
	Text11: The library included several programs highlighting diverse cultures in its program calendar.
	YouthYoung Adult Services  Chapter 11: Off
	Text12: 
	Technology  Chapter 12: Off
	Text13: 
	Marketing Promotion and Collaboration  Chapter 13: On
	Text14: Funds were used to support the printing and mailing of a quarterly newsletter to all addresses (6,000+) within the library district. The newsletter is our most effective means of information about our programs and services. The library also subscribes to Constant Contact, an email service, to send an eNewsletter at least twice monthly.


